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WEDNESDAY, MAY 21, 1975 

SECOND SESSION 

(The hearing was reconvened at 8:30p.m., 

pursuant to the recess on Tuesday, May 20, 1975.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Committee will come to: 

order. 

The Clerk will call the roll. 

(The Clerk called the roll.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: There is a quorum present. 

Members of the Committee, Mr. Canales has 

asked the Chair that we issue three additional subpoenas, 

which the Chair has in hand, one for Francisco Ruiz, 

one for OscarSanehez, and one for Octavio Hinojosa, Jr. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, if I can 

indicate to the Che.ir,there, on the Ofte for Mr. Octavia 

Hinojosa is a subpoena duces tecum also. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Y$s, it is. Are these 

witnesses, I understand, here now, Mr. Canales? 

MR. CANALES: Yes. They are sitting 

right here on the front row. 

subpoenas? 

CHAIRMAN HALE: They are here, present. 

What is the will of the Committee on the 

MR. NABERS: I move th4t they be issued, 
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Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Nabers moves that the 

Chairman be authorized to issue in the name of the 

Committee subpoenas for the three individuals named, 

the one for Mr. Octavio Hinojosa being a subpoena deces 

tecum for certain records. Is there any discussion on 

the motion? 

, (No response.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: All those in favor of 

the motion will vote "aye," those opposed will vote 

"no as your .names are called. 

The Clerk will call the roll. 

(The Clerk called the roll.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: There being nine ayes and 

no nays, the motion is adopted. 

Mr. Kelly, will you take these three subpoenas 

aad serve them on -the witnesses. 

Mr. Mitchel!, let me say to you and to Judge 

Carrillo, I 'rn sure I mentioned it the other n.ight, that 

as ydu kn~w, the Committee doee have subpoena power and 

we would certaialy exercise that power in behalf of any 
-1;:,:·•. 

wltneaaes that you care to call in the same way we would 

for Hr. Canales. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thaak you. Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: If there are any records 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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or witnesses that you can't get here that you want and 

can be reache~ only by subpoena if you'll advise the 

Chair I will certc1nly recommend that the Committe~ 

grant sucb a request. 

Mr. Mitchell, let the Chair also state that 

I'm not sure that you understood it from our previous 

conversation that while this is, as the Chair st~ted 

yesterday, not a prosecution. and as a result we don't 

actticf.pate cross examination in the courtroom s·~nse, if 

there are pertinent questions that you feel should be 

asked some' witnesses, if you will advise one of the 

members of the Committee we will try to see that those 

queotioos are asked. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I then request that 

Mr. Cleofus Gonzale• be recalled because I do have some. 

Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HALL: If he is available we will 

get him. I don't know if he is still here or not. 

MR. CANALES: He is available, Mr. Chair-

man, aad still under subpo-ena. 

CHAIRMAN HALL: All right. Fine. 

The Chair would ask, if you would, Mr. Mitehell, 

to--perhaps it might be better if you're going to have 

very many questions if you could prepare them in advanee 

25 and submit them to us. Then we will be happy to see that 
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those questions are asked. 

· Is there any other business to come before the 
' ' Committee before we start hearing additional testimony? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, wilt you calli 

your first witness. 
I 

l 

I 

MR. CANALES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

My first witness this evening will be a Mr. 

Ruben Chapa, a resident of Duval County and. among other j 

10 instances, will testify to one instance that is very I 
I 
I 

ll clear in his mind which occurred in November of 1974 when! 

I 2 Mr. 0. P. Carrillo and Mr. Ruben Chapa went to the old 

13 City Hall and picked up a backhoe, a piece of equipment 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

14 belonging to the county, which is a tractor type arrange- I 

15 ment. From there they went to the front of the Adiai 

16 tcr~ High Sehool. At that point Mr. Tomas Elizondo 

17 drove up tn a county truck with a trailer and the 

18 backhoe waa loaded. From there it was taken to Bortas 

19 Ranch, which has been indicated to be owned by Judge 

zo o. P. Car:tillo. And the backhoe was used to load gravel 

21 and sand into a cement mixer to make a foundation for a 

22 building oa the Bor!ea Ranch, or on the property belong-

23 tas to Judge o. f. Carrillo. 

24 At that time, Mr. Tomes Elizondo operated the 

2s backhoe aod he was an aaployee of the county. 
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Additionally, on that same day a truck, a 

two and a half ton truck 1 went to the Farm and .ch 

Store, or a combination Farm and Ranch Store, Precinc' 

3 Warehouse, and picked up a substantial amount of 

concrete which was taken and uaed 1n building this 

foundation. 

At this time I would pr•sent to the Comm~:tee 
~ i 

i l 
8 l Mr.. Ruben Chapa. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: All right, Mr. Chapa . 

!0 MR. CANALES: Mr. Chapa will testify ~o 

ll this particular inc1dent,among others, but this one is 

l2 the most vivid 1n his mind &t this time. 

!) ! l 
· CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Chapa* it is my duty 

1.! l! c.s Chairman to advise you of your rights with reference 

! ! 
1 to your testimonv. You will be sworn to tell the 

I <, 1 " 

! 
j() ! truth and your failure to do so could subject you to a 

j l 
I; 

1- l [ prosecution for perjury. 

18 ! \ After you have completed your statement, 
:I 
\ i members of thea Committee may ask questions concerning 

19 ' i 

l i 
20 ! 1 your tes tlmony. You must answer these questions 

! \ 
' ' I! .u 1 · truthfully aad your refusal to do so could subject you 
, I 
; I 

22 ! i to punishment for contempt. You can refuse to answer 
i I 

23 ! questions only on the grounds that such answers might 

I 
~ 4 I incriminate you or tend to incriminate you in some way. 

2'- I l You are privileged to have an attorney of your 

l I 
HlCKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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I 

I 
1 1 solectio• sit with oad advise you as to your anavers if 

I 
2 you deolre. The Chair will attempt to protect your 

rl;bto at all t~es. 

Do )'ou uculerstaad the edvlce I bQVe givon you? 

MI.. CHAPA: Yes, Gir. 

CHAIIMAW HALE: Are you ready to testify 

at tble time? 

MR. CHAPA: Yes, str. 

CHAIRMAN HALl: Would you ataad, please, 

10 ead telae you: ri&ht band &ad bo sworn. 

11 (!ke witoeaa uos awo~n by the Chatrmaa 

12 ct tbla t:lao.) 

13 CHAIRMAN HALE: You may be seated. 

14 

1s . HI. aUBA CHAPA 

16 was enllod cc Q wttoeee ott behalf of the Autho~: and, 

17 bavlars boea cluly owora.. tootlfled. ~• follouas 

18 c&!IMAH HALE: floaae state your aame 

19 o"d root.llq octch:oos 11 1f you td.11 0 ploase,. fo~ tho record. 

20 Rubea Ct\apa, lou 26S 0 leaav1des • Yeatls. 

21 CBAlBMAR HALE: Bona-.1deo • Tonas. rtae. 

22 lf i'O'U bCVO 0 pt:OPQrGd &t&temeat JOU uieh tO taakG YOU My 

23 proc~urd. O.t~ *· C4oalea, t.f you tJant to do 1c 1a 

24 queatloa ead aactiett fona you SCJ' pnooed. 

25 
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Chapa - direct 2-10 
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1 i I 
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DIRECT EXAMINATION 
'I 
I, S 

) 1 BY MR. CANALE 

Q Mr., Ruben Chapa, would you state for this: 

·I 
Committee your occupation? 

A 
I 
I r•m the owner of a Texaco Service Station there! 

I (, I 
I 

; I 
8 j 

9 I 
10 

I I 
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20 

2l 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

in Benavides. 

~ How long have you lived in Benavides, Mr. 

Chapa? 

A All my life. 27 years. 

Q Mr. Ruben Chapa, I would take you back to the 

time lfhen we interviewed and asked you to relate to 

this Committee the events which occurred in November of 

1974 and would ask you to relate to them those events 

as they pertained to the backhoe incident. 

MR. CANALES: I would ask. Mr. Chairman, 

if the entire COIItlittee knows what a backhoe is, or else 

I'll go into an enplsnation of what it is. 

Clf.AlBMAN HALE: The Chairman doesn't 

know. so-

Ma. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, a backhoe is 

a type of tractor which in the back has an arm type 

ap.p4r·ntulJ which ia used for di&gina holes. You see them 

frequently beina used by the Water Departmen~and what 

not to d~S trenches with. And they are somewhat like a 

sbovel., except chc,. are hydraulically powered. 
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Chapa - direct 2-11 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you, sir. 

Could I make a correction? 

Yes. 

It was November of 1973. 

Okay. 

Instead of 1974-

Q Go ahead and tell the Committee, would you 

please, sir? 
i 

On November of 1973 I was riding with 0. P. I 
I 

in hla car and we went to the city hall, the old building! 
I 

there ia Benavides. We picked Up the backhoe. Tomas ! 

Elizondo d~ove it over in front o~ the high school, the 

Ad11l1 Part" Hlgh School. 

Q Mr. Chapa, may I interrupt you. To whom did 

the backhoe belong? 

A The backhoe belongs to tho Duval County 

Coas3rvation and Reclamation District. 

Q Thank you. Continue, please. 

A From there we took it-- ~~s Elizondo--took it 

over to. the front of the high school. Later on he went 

and got a tr~k~ I guess it belonged to the County; it 

bad an exempt license on it, with a trailer. We loaded 

it on the trailer. connected everything, and we went 

over about, I would say, sixteen. eighteen miles from 

there, to Bortas Ranch. That is on Highway 16. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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~ Mr. Chapa, let me interrupt you one more ti~e. 
1 

Mr. Tomas Elizondo, do you know this man personally? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q How long have you known 1-fr. Tomas Elizondo? 

A All my life. 

Q At the time that the county-owned truck and 

trailer arrived at the old, or in front of the Adlai 

Pa~~ High School to pick up this backhoe that belonged 

· to the Duval Water District or Conservation and Water 

District, in whose employ was Mr. Tomas Elizondo at that 

time? 

A 

Q 

A 

The County, I guess. Duval County. 

Would you go ahead and proceed. 

From there we loaded the backhoe, like I said, 

15 and we got over to the Bortas Ranch on Highway 16. 

16 I Q Let me interrupt you. To who does Bortas 

17 Ranch belongf 

18 A It belongs to District Judge o. P. Carrillo. 

I9 Q Go ahead. 

20 A From there we unloaded the backhoe that 1m 

21 front it's got a'acoop also, a two yard scoop, I guess 

22 ia. They used it to--Tomas Eli~ondo was the one that 

23 was drlvf.ttg f.t. He was loading the gravel and sand to be 

24 pouartad into a cem(ent mixer that they were making a 

2s tounc:J~ation tor a building ot' a store or, I don't know 
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what they were going to do, but it was a foundation that 

was being built. 

Q Let me interrupt you again, Mr. Chapa, and 

ask you who was operating the backhoe machinery, this 

piece of machinery? 

A Tomas Elizondo was. 

Q Is it the same Tomas Elizondo who you said was 

at that time working for the county? 

A tea, si.r. 

Q Thank you. Go ahead. 

A The , truck th.at c•me over to town, that two and 

a half toQ tru.~k. I guess belongs to District Judge o. P 

13 ~rr111o, eame over to the Farm aftd Baneh. The boys 

14 1
0peaed thea warehouse tnere that I guess belongs to 

15 

!6 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Precinct 3 and sot some sacks of cement. I don'.t know 

if the cemeat beloqcad to the county or who tt belonged 

to, but 1t wag loaded .and taken 'back to the ra.nch. 

Q Mr. Chapa~ do you kncm vhlch part of this 

eatabltabaent 1s in fact the county or the prec1oct 

warehouse? 

A On the back of the •rm ·aad :Bancb. 

Q And that is th• plAce from which the cemsDt was 

loaded aad tQkea avay from thls precinct? 

Q 

Yea, slr. 

Thank JOU. Go ahead. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A And then we took it back and they were buildingi 

the foundation and there was a lot of help there. I 

don't know where it came from or nothing, but I was 

there. I w~s ju~t looking. I was not doing anything. 

I was just riding around with 0. P. 

Q Let ''me ask you about the quantity of cement 

that was loaded. Were you present at the time it was 

being loaded? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Was it one or two sacks. or did they load the 

11 truck down pretty heavily? 

12 A Pretty heavily. r can't say what amount becaus~ 

13 they were not counting. They were just putting it there 

t4 in the truck. 

15 Q Additionally, Mr. Chapa, I would like to ask 

16 you if you know a Mr. Patricio Garza? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, elr. 

Where does Mr. Patricio Garza live, Mr. Chapa? 

In Benavides. 

Do you know who Mr. Patricio Garza has been 

21 employed with in the past? 

22 A That I know, he works for the county. I 

23 don't kaow what preeinet. Probably Precinct 3. Th~t's 

24 the precinct we've got there 1n Benevides. 

Q Let me clarify. Does he work for the county or 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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~:paid­
! I 

2 I CHAIRMAN HALE: Let the Chair interrupt 

I 

-~ i , I 
I I 

4 I ! 

you just a minute. When you keep referring to the 

"County." are we always talking about Duval County now 
II 

5 
1 • whera we say the "County"? 

I 6 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Zl 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yes, s!r. Duval County. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: All right .. Thank you. 

Q Let's clarify this point. was he working for 

the county or betna paid by the county? 

A He was being paid by the county because I've 

seen. him once or t"i.ee cash his checks, so I guess he 0s 

being paid by the county. 

Q Did you ever see Mr. Patricio Garza when be 

was working? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, sir. 

Where did he work? 

At o. P. Carrillo's ranch. 

Do you know a Mr. Tomas Elizondo? 

Yes. sir. 

Do you know a Mr. Tomas Elizondo today? 

Yes, sir. 

Where is he workiag today? 

At 0. P. Carrillo's raach.· 

Do you know who he is employed by? 

Duval County. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Chapa - direct 

Q And Mr. Elizondo works on Mr. 0. P. Carrillo's 

ranch? 

A I guess. He drives his truck every day and 

he's got the trailers and everything every day. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I have no more 

questions of this witness and would submit him as a 

witness to the Committee. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. Thank you, Mr. 

l) I ' Canales. 
ll 

10 

II 

12 

QUESTIONS BY THE COMMITTEE 

BY CHA IIMAN HALE 

Q Mr. Chapa, when was this backhoe taken from the 

u Duval County Conservation and Reclamation District and 

t4 delivered to the ranch belonging to Judge Carrillo? 

15 A When was it taken? 

16 Q Yea. 

17 A I cannot tell you the exact date, but it was 

IR in November, I know, of '73. But it was not taken from 

19 the Duval County Conservation aod Reclamation District. 

20 Q Who~e was it taken from? 

21 A It was taken from the city hall. I guess they 

22 parked it there becauae-- Why it was parked there, I 

23 don • t know., 

24 Q 

25 A 

How large a piece of equipment is a backhoe? 

It's pretty big. It's 11ke a regular tractor. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Chapa - dir:~e~c~t ____________ _ 2-17 

Is it the size of a pickup? 

Somewhere around there. It's heavy. lt's 

5 l heavy equipment. It had to be loaded on the trailer 

(, 

!:1 

9 

10 

II 

J 2 

13 

14 

because to go eighteen miles drlvlng it at 20 or 25 

miles an hour takes a lons t1~ to get up there. 

Q 

A 

Q 

equipment? 

Q 

It does not have an engine of its own? : 

Yes 1 sir, it does. I 
I 

Does it? You can operate it without any other ' 
II: 

Yes, sir. It's got a 1110tor in it and every- I VI 
I 

Row lona did this backhoe stay at the ranch of I 

0. P. Cazott111o? l 
Prom there I don't know, sir. because I was 

15 there that day. Aad it happens to be that I was there 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

, thtlt day. I came beck to B•oavides. I came back to my 

station. Ft"Oa there on I don't know. I was mos.t of the 

day tbere because I remembez.o I ate there at the ranch. 

Aoc:l -romas llf.aondo waa with you while you 

were taklos .tt to the ranch? 
.' . . 

/ 
A To81as Elirzondo wer:.t on the truck. 

D1strlct Judae o. P. Carrillo in his car. 

I went with 
/ 

Q :Chen tho throe of you wore out there at the 

24 raacb at tbo aeme t:l.me? 

25 A 
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Chapa - direct 

~r~ 
I I 

And the backhoe was there at the time all 

, ji three of you were there? 

.l i I A Well, we got it there at the same time. 

Q At tbe same time. How did you and Judge I I 
·l I I 
5 : Carrillo get out to the ranch? 

. I 
I' 

6 jl 

, I 

8 II 

9 

10 

II 

12 

l3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

A In his car. 

Q And Tomas Elizondo was in a truck? 

A 

Q And he had the backhoe loaded on the back of 

the truck? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Yee, sir. 

was anyone else out th4re at the tU.e? 

At the ranch? 

Yes~ 

Well. there were aoae school kids I guess they 

btred or something to mi:x the cement or something. I 

couldn't give you their names or how many ~ere there. 

But there ver• some other k1dc there that were helping 

19 him. It was a weekend 0 I can recall. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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belongs ~o Dufal, County, we loaded cement from there and 
; I 

we went back to the ranch. And they were unloadin. the 

cement. As they were needing the sacks, they were 

unloading it. They didn't unload them all. They just 

left them on the truck. As they were using them they 

were unloaded. 

Q You say "We" went to the warehouse. Who is 

t'We"? 

A I, myself, and I guess-- I'm not too sure. 

10 Yes. Judge Carrillo went over and he just told us to 

11 

I 2 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

load it, Md he took off and th$n lat·er on he came and 

picked me up acoift ·aad I went with him. 

thGJ 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

got 

Q 

A 

q 

Was the warehouse locked? 

No, sir. 

Do you ha•e a key to the warehouse? 

No 11 str, I doa~t work for the county. 

was it durlna regular wo~klng hours? 

It ., .. a weekend. It wcs a Saturday. 

It was a 11•ekead. Wbo opened the warehouse? 

I peas they all have keys. I don • t know where 

the keys f&"OIIl. 

How did you get f.ato tho warGbouse? 

lt wae opon already. 

lt w•a al~ead1 open•d· was anybody in the 

2s w•rehouae at the tlae? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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~ No, sir. It is just a room. It is .Just a room! 
I . 

2 ~~ where they store their things; just a small room. You 

-~ I 
I . I: 

' I I ., II 

can't store too many things in there. 

Q Do they keep it locked when it's not being 

I I 
5 1 

1 
used? 

: i 

6 l I 
l 
I 
I 

: I 

9 

10 

11 

I 2 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

A Pro}lably they knew that they were going to go 

pick up the cement and they unlocked it before. Maybe 

bis brother unlocked it or something. I don 1 t know. 

Q Mr. Canales asked you about someone named 

Patricio Garza. Was he involved in taking the backhoe 

or the cement out there? 

A No. air. No, sir. He was at the ranch. 

Q Was he out there at the same time that you and 

Tomas Elizondo were out there that day in November? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

~en we got b.ack over there at the ranch? 

Yes, sir. 

Ye9• sir. 

What was he doing out there? 

A He was there and then he went to the ranch 19 

20 and I gueaa be wont and cooked for the boys and everytbin~ 
21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I 

I 

out there. He's usually the one that cooks when there 

ts some work golag on or something. 

Q Did you eat while you were out there? 

A Yea, sir. 

Q Which meal did you oat? I 

....,.___ _____ j 
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A I can't recall. 

.?. Q Was it the noon meal or an evening meal? 

A The noon meal. 

Q The n~on meal. How long were you out at the 

~ ranch that day? 

A Like I say, I stayed there t111 about two 

or three o'clock. I can't recall. I came back to 

B Benavides and I attended to my business. I was there at 
1t 

9 the station. 

10 Q 

II A 

12 Q 

13 operate? 

!4 A 

15 Q 

16 A 

17 Q 

All righte You say "station." 

Texaco. 

Is that a Texaco station that you own and 

Yes. s:t..r. 

Have you ever been employed by Duval County? 

No • alt-. 

Have you ever been employed by the Duval 

1s County Co~servatioa and Reclamation District? 

19 A Yea, sir. 

20 Q When did you work for them? 

21 A t•m still working for them. 

22 Q You're on the payroll now? 

23 A Yes, air. 

Q How loas have you vorked for 

zs Conservation and Reclamation District? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 

the Duval County 



I II 
I; 
I ' 
I 

2 I 

! 
3 ! 

4 

5 

10 

11 

12 

l3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

\,;napa - cu.rec t 2-·22 

A I started last year in April; April the first 

of last year. '74, until right now. 

Q Wh•t work do you do for the Conservation 

District? 

A I'm the Business Office Manager. I'm in 

charge of the people, tell them where to go, what to do~ 

what work has to be done. When there is a leak of 

water. sewaae water, I mean sewers leak or something, 

I send them ove~ to do the job. 

Q Are you paid a regular salary for that work? 

A I 1m paid $700 a month. 

Q· $700 a month? 

A Yes, air. 

Q Is that considered a full-time job or do you 

just work at it part time? 

A I'm there at the office and then I go check 

the people, and I'm around there. 

Q In addition to that, you run this Texaco 

19 Service Station? 

20 A I have some workers at the station. 

2l Q 

22 A I've got workers at the station, that they run 

23 my station. After 5:00 I'm there at the station. 

24 Sometimes I go through there ad see what they need and 

25 then I come back. 
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Q 

County 

A 

Chapa - d~.~r=e=c=t ____ _ 

Who employed you to go to work for the Duval 

Conservation and Reclamation District? 

Let me see. Leopoldo Sepulveda. He is the 

Genernl Manager. 

Q Is the Duval County Conservation and 

Reclamation District governed by a multi-member board 

that's elected? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Do you know who the members of that board are? 

A Right now? 

Q Yea, sir. 

A The President of the Board is Gape Raymond; 

tbe Seeretary is F. H. Canales; and the other members are 
I 

.~e&lu:nr.e.. He is from lealitos, Texas; and Felipe 

••.~"••. Ke is from La Roa1 ta 1 TGxaa • And ·Ga~ Raymond 

aDd F. H. Cauales are from Benavides. 

Q Five members on the Board? 

A rout. 

Q Four m~bors on the Board. Is the Canales 

that•o a member OA the Board any relation to Representa­

tive Terry Cadloe? 

A I doo•t know. 

Q Do you knou if auy of the members of that Board . 

are related to Judae Ctu:r111o7 

A Bo, str. They al'e QOt related. 
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Q Do you know if any of the members of that Board i 

~ are related to Terry Canales? 

A I don't know. 

Q You don't know. All right. 

5 Did aayone assist you in getting that job? 

6 No, sir. I asked for a job and they gave me 

7 that job. 

8 Q You didn't go to anybody else and ask them to 

9 take you down tb~re and recommend you? 

10 A No, s.ir.. I asked for a job and they gave me a 

II job, so t•m still there. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

Have you ever been employed by Judge Carrillo? 

No, Gil'. 

In any way? 

I_ was just a close friend of his. 

Have you ever been employed by any of the 

~artnerships, the businesses of which he is a partner? 

A No, sir. 

I believe one of which was called the 11Farm 

20 and Ranch Store." Rave you ever been employed by the 

21 Farm and Ranch Store? 

22 A No.,str. 

23 Q Have you ever been employed by the Zertuche 

24 General Store? 

25 Q Where ts the Zertuche General Store located? 
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A I don't know it. Just by name, I guess. 

at the same h•llding of the Farm and Ranch. 

Q Do they have a sign out there for it? 

A No. 

Q What sort of merehandise does the Zertuche 

Oenoral Store have? 

I don't know if they have any merchandise. 

I know ram and Ranch had some merchandise there. 

They had filters and all kinds of Qdds and ends, you 

know. Plumbing fixtures and e~erything. 

~Q Did you ever buy anything 1n the Farm and 

Ranch Store? 

A 

Q What'l 

It is 

Ob, onee I bought something for the commode 

at the station aad little stuff that I needed, you know. 

Just little tb!ng.e that I aeeded for the station: paiat 

or aomeebf.aa. you know. 

Q Did 1ou ever buy anything from the Zertuche 

Geaeral store? 

A lot that I know of because I alwaye paid 

cash. or gave chem c check. 

Q The Zertuche General Store wouldn't take cash? 

I neve~ made a ticket. I never charged it. I 

clwaJS paid wheQ I went and bought something. 
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3 I 
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4 I 
I 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

I 7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q Well-

In other words, I never--when tt was a little 

thing, you know, a fifty or sixty cents thing. why would 

I ask for a slip or something, cash ticket or ao~ething? 

I dlda't need one. 

Q 

A 

Maybe you did~'t understand my question. 

Di.d ,I ever buy something from the Zertuche 

General Sto~e'l 

) 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Did you ever buy any merchandise of any type 
I 

I don't even know if the store existed or not. 

Did you ever buy anything from it theft? 

mo, s:l~. 

All ript. 

How could I buy wbea they didn't have raothingf 

Are you a -.r~ied man? 

Yes, sir. 

Do you have any children? 
\ 

Yes, sir. 

Bow many? 

One. 

HavE! you ever at any time used any food orders 

z3 through Duval county? 

24 

2) 

A I<doa•t need them. l work. 

Q Or ant governmental agency there? 

u____ _____ j 
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A No, sir .. 

. 2 Q Food stamps? 

3 A 

Q Have you ever had occasion to use e.ny county 

equipment? 

(, A Me? 

Q Yes. 

8 A No, sir. 

9 'CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney? 

10 BY MR. MALONEY 

11 Q Mr. Chapa, when did you say that the use of 

12 this backhoe occurred? 

13 A The backhoe? 

14 Q Backhoe. 

IS A In November of '73. 

16 Q How do you recall that date? 
I 

17 A Because I had just bousht my truck that month. 

18 I bought a •74 GMC. It was brand new. I can recall 

19 because it was hrand new. It was in that month. 

20 Q How did you come to get in touch with Judge 

21 Carrillo that day? 

22 A We were close friends. 

23 Q I beg your pardon. I'm sorry. 

24 A We were close friends. I said "We were." He 

2s used to come to my station to get gasoline or sometbiag, 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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~~~ would ask him "Where are you going?" and h.e would 
II 
I i 

2 jJ say, "I'm going to the ranch." "What are you doing?" 

3 1i "Well, doing this." I would just hop in the car and go 
I 

,i 

1 

i with him. I always used t..o do that. 

I I 

' lr 
6 I , 

I I 

7 I 

Q Is that what you did on that occasion? 

A Probably I asked him or probably he told me 

.,Do you want to go? 11 or something. I ·can't recall • 

8 You know, so many times I'm with him, you know. About 

9 every other day. or I would see him every day. He would 

10 go to my stat ion every day. 

II Q On this date that we're talking about, you're 

12 telling tho Committee then that he came by your station? 

13 A 1 aaw him there at the station, and I got in 

14 the car with him. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

All right. He was in his car? 

Be was in his car. 

Was anyoae with him? 

Tomas 11laoado was with him. Later on we came 

19 back to town. WG went to the raftch, came back to town 

20 and picked up that backhoe like I told you. Wbon we 

21 vent to the ranch I came back to town with Judge Carrillo 

22 and I picked up my pickup in town, and I went to the 

23 raach in my pickup 1 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Why? 

Because like that I could come back whenever I 
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AUSTIN, TEXAS 



10 

II 

13 

14 

15 

16 

I 7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

L;napa - a1rect 2-29 

wanted to. 

Q But why did you go back to the ranch? 

A To the ranch? Because it was about noon time 

and I was going to eat. 

Q At the Judge's ranch? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Was Tomas Elizondo over there? 

A Elizondo? 

Q At the ranch? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

What.was be do1og there? 

He was operating that backhoe. 

Did you do any work there? 

No, slr. I was just looking. 

I believe you said that this was a weekend. 

ts that correct? 

A It uas a weekend. 

Q Was it part of Tomas's duties to work on. the 

weekends for the county? 

A I don't kaow. I see him work every day. 

Q Do you koow whether he was paid for his work 

on the Judge's reach? 

A I don' t kaow. 

Q You said that you had bought things from the 

ram and ltancb Store. Is that correct? 
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II 
2 l 

A Yes, sir, I have. 

Q How recently beve you done that? 

! 
3 I W~l~, not t'OO long ago I just went to the A 

4 Form Qnd Ranch aQd I needed a part for my trailer house 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

J3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

that I bought. It was closed. So I went over and aske~ 

autr.ro Carrillo's son. that's Ramtro Carrillo, Jr .. , that 
i 

I needed a part for my trailer because I knew he had I 
I 

some parts at the store. He said, "I can't go over 1 

I because I'm babysitt1n& 1 so here's the key to the store."! 

He •as that honest. He gave me the key and I went, looket 
for- the part aad I couldn' t find it. since then I 

havea't, you know, I haven't been there but I can•t say j 

when I bought somothtog. 

Q How about prior to March of 1974? Had you 

boqht anything from the Farm and Ranch Store? 

A 

Q 

A 

In March cf 1974? 

Co~:t:ect. 

I doa't think ao. Ho. No, I have not. 

Q All during this time, you 1 t:e a tUltive of 

Benavides. I; that correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And you had never previous to March of 1974 

23 bought eaythf.q at the Farm and RaQch? 

24 A 

25 

You're talking before or after? 

Before. 
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A Before March of '74? 

Q Correct. 

A Oh, yes. I said a while ago that I had bought 

i some parts. I thought you said-

6 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

I; 

18 

19 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Do you recall who you bought them from? 

Cleofus Gonzalez . 

You do know Cleofus Gonzalez ? 

Yes. sir. 

You were buying from the Farm and Ranch Store? 

I guess it was the Farm and Ranch. 

And he waited on you? 

Yes, sir. 

Did .. you pay him? 

Yes, air. 

What did he do with the money? 

He had a big cash register there. I guess he 

opened the oseb register, marked, you know, the price of 

thekem, and put the money in there, and that's it. 

ViCE CHAIRMAN MALONEY: That 1 s all that 

20 I have • Thank you. 

21 CHAIRMAN BALE: M¥. Slack? 

22 BY MR.. SLACK 

23 A 

24 was Tomas 7 

25 A 

You aal.d the man that operated the backhoe 

Its name is Tomas Elizondo. 
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i 

Q ~~xs he normally employed by the county or by 

the Judge on his raach? Where was his normal place of 

employunt? 

A Erap loymeut? 

Q Yes. Where did he work? Where did Tomas work? 

Did be work for th• county? 

A He got paid by the county. He was at the 

Judge's reach most of tbe time, or somewhere around 

there in towa. 

Q So far aa you know, you don't know who his 

aormal employer was 7 Was he on the county pay.ro 11 so far 

aa you kno~. or did he work for the Judge on the raneh? 

A I doA't knou tf he was on the county payroll 

or if he was by e1a1•. 

Q By clala? 

A It's a elaia that I guess they've got them for 

people that wo!!k a weak or two or mo~tth, or something 

like that Dd, you kaov. tbeJ aak.a a claim for payment. 

Ml..t CAHALBSt 1 would like to interrupt 

just a aecottd. Th$ae are different fro• the county 

payi'oll. This is what a c latm ts. They are put in• in 

this manaer. Tb.are may be a · cU.s t irtc t ion I'm l\Ot familiar 

wlth but I was tafo~ed that this is a claim aad that it 

la different from a eou11ty pay ebeek. 

Ma. SLACI:: I see. 
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MR. CANALES: That does not cover Mr. 

Elizando, not Tomas Elizondo, at least. 
I 

MR. SLACK: It does not• so far as you 

know? 

MR. CANALES: No. That is Roberto 

Elizondo, a brother or half-brother. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Counsel, let the Chair 

ask you on these claims then. They are handled on a 

contract basis rather than an employe-e-employer basis? 

Ml. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, we have the 

Assistant or the Deputy County Auditor here who will 
I 

testify as to the employment. and he is more in a poa1t1o~ 

to explain the differences between a county check and the I 
i 
I 

county claim, or whatever. I'm sure he ean clear it up I 
l 

to the Committee's satisfaction. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: But it all comes out of 

tax payer's money. 

MR. CANALES: Oh. yes. 

CHAIRMAN HALE : Okay • 

MR. CANALES: The root of all evil. 

Q One more question, please. How did you know 

22 that the backhoe, the tractor with the backhoe attach-

23 meot, belonged to the county? 

24 A 

25 Q 

It didn't belong to the county. 

It belonged to the Water District? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



\.Onapa - a1.recc 2-34 
----·-·· ... 

1 !! A The Water District:. Duval Coun.t:y Water 
i! 
j i District. 

z II 
3 1 Q How do you know that? 

4 I A Because one time I asked them for it because 
j 

5 I needed to do a job and told--

Q You asked the Water Di.strict for it? 

7 A No. I aaked Guadalupe Ruiz. because he was 

the man that was--the operator, you know, the regular 

9 operator that wes employEid--b.e is still employed by the 

IO Water District. He told me that D. c. Chapa had said 

I I 

I2 

'-

tbat he~.·d ldn' t wan.t for that backhoe to be loaned to 

aaybody. So I said, "Well, tbank you very Qiueh." Alld I 

13 knew it belonged to the Water District because Guadalupe 

r4 Ruia is employed by tbe Water District and he was the 

15 oae lhct used lt moet of the time for water leaks aad 

16 evorJthina. 

I7 Q 

18 MI. SLAClt: I ha'\re no further questions, 

20 CIA tiMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks? 

21 BY MI. •. HERDttiCES 

22 Mr. Chtlpe. I believe you stated that you did 

23 not ka~ whether .Judso Corrlllo also paid thase mea in 

24 addttioa. to thoir cOUilty -.loylllilllt. Is that col'rect? 
' I 

Z5 A I don't kaow if he paid them or not. I couldo •·~ 
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1 ~you. 
II 

2 j l Q Have you ever seen them working on his ranch 
II 

1 ;j at any time other than weekends? . . I 
i 

I ! 
~ I 

I 
I 

A 

Q 

Yes» sir. During the week. 

You have seen them there personally during 
jl 

(, 1! the week working? 

I I A Yes. Sometimes I would go with hlm, like I 

8 told you, if they invited me or I tagged along most of 

9 l the time, whatever it was. 

10 

I I 

I 2 

Q 

A 

Q 

Have you ever seen them do work for the county? 

Not that I know. 

What precinct did this cement belong to, if 

1 3 you know ? 

14 I don't know if it belongs to countywide, if 

J'j 1t belongs to Precinct 1, 2 or 3 or 4. It might have 

16 been countywide. From there they could distribute that 

11 cemeat to whatever precinct needed that cement. I 

IB 

19 

20 

21 

22 

2) 

don't know. 

Q 

Farm lll'.ld 

A 

Q 

A 

and theG 

Q 

I believe this barn was at the back of the 

Ranch Store. Is that correct? The county barn? 

It's not a barn. 

A storage barn, or whatever? 

lt's a store and then 1t's got 

it's 

was 

got like a storeroom. 

the equipment belonging to 
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that belonging to the Farm and Ranch Store intermingled? 

A I couldn't tell you. 

Q Do you understand what I mean by that? 

A Yes. They were together at the same l~ation? 

Q Yes. Right .. 
' I 
I 

A Yes. But I couldn't tell you which one belonge~ 

to the county and whleh one belonged to the--

Q Is there any way you have of knowing whether 

or not the cem~nt belonged to the Farm and Ranch Store 

or whether·tt belonged to the county? 

A 4t one tf.me they had said that there had been 

a car load. a train ear load, that was ordered I guess 

by the couaty of cement. What they were going to do with 

it, I doo't kaow. 

Q Of 70ur own knowledge, is there aay way you 

know--can you tell this committee--

A t didn't work for the county. I didn't see 

no-but lik• I tell you. I bad heard that the cement 

was the couaty's and they h~d stored it there because 

the people from the county had to unload it from the 

tra1a., or oor load, or whatever you want to call it. 

Q All rtsht. Have you ever serviced county 

vehicles at your aervice at4tioo? 
; 

A They would spead about--are you talkins about--

2s what ps:ctclactf 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Q Any precinct. 

A I am still servicing some cars. The Sheriff's 

Department car and the Precinct 4 car. 

Q How are you paid for these service£? 

A By tbe county. 

Q All right. How do they pay you? Do they 

issue warr411ts for it? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

By c~eck. 

By check? 

Yes, sir. 

Do you turn in a voucher for it or how are you 

12 paid? 

l3 A No. I gtve the bills to the Commissioner or 

14 

I 5 

to the Sheriff's Department at the end of the month. 1 

The1 take them and when they meet they approve the bills, I 
I 

16 

17 

18 

I auesa, and the County Commissioner that bought the I 

supplies there. the gasoline or whatever he bought, he'll I 

b:rloa me his check or ona of the deputios will bring me 

19 the Sheriff's DepartmGJnt's check. But they haven't 

20 btousbt them for two months b&cause they haven't been 

n P47l~8 or aometbiag. I don't kaow what's going on. 

22 Q This was under the jurisdiction of Judge 

23 ArcbeJt Parr and the County Commtasioaers Court. Is that 

24 correct? 

25 A Wl.\at? 

HICKMAN kCPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



2-38 \#napa - a1.rect .-r--..,.--------_;:_------'------------ -------····------··--· 
II 
jl 
. I 

2 I l 
i! 

) II 
I 

, I' 
·I 'I 

_II 
I , 

5 i I 

" I 
7 I 
8 

9 

10 

II 
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18 

19 

Q 

and the 

A 

Q 

A 

has been 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

name? 

These are issued by the Commissioners Court 

County Judge. Is that correct? 

Well, the County Judge? 

Yes. 

Yes. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Hendricks, 

suspended from the Beach. 

Well, whoever is County Judge. 

I guess Dan Tobin. 

All right. 

Archer Parr 

Since Dan Tobin went ln I haven't been paid. 

Have you ever serviced Judge Carrillo's car? 

How a~e you paid for this? 

I don't service them no li\Ore. 

How wewe you paid when JOU did? 

He b4d a credit card of hts own. 

Was the credit card 1a his name or the countyts 

A zo o. P. Cazorlllo. 

21 He ~•• billed direct for this? Q 

A 22 If I ttould pay my gasoline with credit cards 

23 then Texaco would eead hie b111a at the end of the month, 

24 I guess. 

25 Q Let ae aak you th.ia: Has the Judge or hts 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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brother, the Commissioner, ever cashed a county check or 

a county voucher that belonged to so~~one else at your 

service station? 

A No. 

Q Of your own knowledge, is this backhoe that 

belonged to the Duval County--

A Water District:. 

8 Q --Conservation District, has it ever been 

9 to anyone besides the JUdge, of your own knowledge? 

10 A When are you talking about? 

1 I Q The backhoe. Has it ever been loaned to any· 

12 one besides Judge Carrillo? 

13 

14 

J 'i 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

A 

Q_ 

A 

Right 1\0W or-

Thea. 

Thea? 

Back .in November of 1973. 

Like l told you, when I went and asked for it 

IB they told me that D. C. Chapa, he waa the President of 

19 the Board, said that that backhoe could not be loaned to 

20 anybody, that the boys could not do ay work after four 

n with it. So the? probably did before, or something. 

22 Q Was th1& before Movembet of 1973 or after 

23 November of 1973? 

24 A 

2'i Q 

When I asked for it? 

Yes. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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had you 

A 

Q 

A 

l;llapa - dlrect l-40 

It was before. 

Before? 

Ye~, sir. 

Prior to 
.' ,, the time you asked for the loan of it, 

ever known of anyone borrowing it? 

Borrowing it? 

Right. 

The oa:tty one that I would see after work on 

9 I the backhoe was that man Guadalupe Ruiz. 

10 Q Who is h.e? 

II A He is the f.ar-eman of the gang, you know, the 

12 workers. from the Water District. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Q 

Q 

A 

From the Water District? 

Froa the Water Dapar~ent. 

Was ha doing private wos:k with the backhoe! 

He would ask for it aad do it. somebody would 

t7 hove aomotbiaa t• be-you know, SO'Qlebody had it to build 

1s the line ox somath1ft.8o"'t})eiWA~G1! 11De, at the1t house 

t9 or sometb1D.g, and he would go and gut five or .... ten 

20 dollars ext~a. I don't knott if tbey pald him or not. 

21 But you kaow • be was-

22 Q W.11, of your knowledge, dtd they pay him for 

23 this work? 

24 A I neve~ eaw anybody pay hi$ because 1 would see 

25 the tr£otor wo~k1ca after 4~30 or S:oo. and what he was 
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doing, I don't know. 

Q But he's the one that: told you they didn't loani 

the backhoe? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Of your knowledge, do you know whether or not 

Judge Car.rillo in November of 1973 had permission to 

use this backhoe? 

A I don't know. His daddy was the President of 

the Water Board. I guess he--

Q He was President of the Water Board? 

A Yes. I guess he could have loaned him the 

tractor. 

Q Who were the Board members in November of 

1973, if you know? 

A I don't know.. They change so ofteQ that I 

don't know. 
I 

Q Who wa& P~esident of the Board? 

A Ha was. 

MR. HENDRICKS: I believe that's all I 

have, Mr. Chairman .. 

CHAllMAN HALE: Thank you, Mr. Hendricks .. 

Mr. IJ:abe~s? 

BY MR. NABEltS 

Q aow long have you beea an etnployee of the 

Conservation Diotrict? 
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Since April lst of '74 to right now. 

Q So you weren't an employee when you asked if 

you could borrow the backhoe? 

A No. That was in '73 when I asked for it • 

Q Did the backhoe have any identification on it, 

to your knowledge, that would identify it as being the 

backhoe that belonged to the Conservation and Reclama-

tion District? 

A None of the equipment that the Water District's 

got that they had at that time had any identification. 

When I went into the Water Diatriet I bought some stick­

one with the name and I put one on about every- I'm not 

saying all of the equipment, but I would say most of it. 

Q Do·es the district still own that backhoe now? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Ia the sticker on it now? 

A I guess they took it off because we painted it. 

We paioted the backhoe; it needed some paint so we juat-­

Q There would have been a sticker on it. You 

did put a sticker on it? 

A I put one on it and then I took it off because 

we had to paint it. 

MR. NABERS: Thank you. 

CHA IRMAR HALE: Mr. Kaster? 

MR. lASTERc Yeo. 
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1\ BY MR. KASTSR 
; I 

I: Q Mr. Chapa, what size truck was used at the Farm 
I : 
' 

~ : and Ranch Store to load the cement? Was it a pickup? 

i 
(> ' 

I 
: I 

~ I 

A Two and a half ton pickup. 

Two and a half ton? You don't know when you 

were th~re if any arrangements were made to buy the 

cement? You don't ;know what arrangements were made on 

the cement other than to just load it? 

A All I know is the front gates were opened 

IO ~~and the warehouse gate was open. That's all I know. 

l I ,When you got there? 

12 
O< .. ·"'.,; 

~·· ~ i 
13 

14 A Yes, sir. 

I 5 Q And you don't know '~hat arrangements Mr. 

I(> Carrillo had made to get the cement? 

I :• A No, air. 

IH Q Do you know if the ranch where you went to 

I9 work with the backhoe, is that in that Water District, 

20 or do you know? 

2l 

i I 
22 ! I 

A What? 

Q The ranch itself. Does that encompass part 

23 of the Water District? 

2<'j A I guess the Duval County Water District covers 

. '"> all of the county, I guess • 

I 
i 
I II ___________________________________j 
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Q The whole county? 

A It is supposed to. san Diego, Benavides, 

Realitos, Concepcion, that I know, you know, that we 

charge water to the people, except Freer, Texas. They've 

5 got their own water district. But I don't know if the 

whole district under the whole county pays taxes to the 

water district, to the Duval County Water District. I 

s don't know. I, couldn't tell you that. 

Q You aren't a member of the Water District, as 

zo such? 

II A No. No, co .. 

12 Q Do you know if people that belong to the Water 

13 District could borrow this b4ckhoe on weekends when it 

z4 wasn't beina used? 

15 A Like I told you, at that time I asked for it 

16 and they woulda' t lend it to me. 

17 Q But you said you veren't a member of the 

1s water district. 

19 A No. 

20 Q I'm asking you if you know 6f members of the 

21 water district themaelvos could borrow the backhoe on 

22 weekends 'tlbeli it wasn't beiq used? Apparently this 

23 was a weekend. I mean., was it ever done before by any 

24 other people? 

25 A Like I told you., that boy that worked for· the 
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~ water district. th&t he would use it after work. 

2 l i be was world.ag w1th:.the backhoe. 
l 

5 

3 i Q Well, was it ever used on anybody else's 

4 j &-aucb or-

! 
A Oh, no. No. 

6 There 1n town 1 

7 ., A There in town. 

8 

9 

I know 

10 The truck did have a license. 

! 

: 
i 

i 

Jl Q The tratlGr tU.dn't go with the baekboe? B~eause 

12 that la p~etty co~on to move a backhoe around to use a 

13 i trmtle::. 

14 

16 

17 

Q 

A 

It :was a hi&h trailer~ you know, one of tho$e 

It wasn't a low trailer? 

It was a.ct a lowboy Ot' ODe of thoee with 

18 rampa· on it. We had to mock off the trailer fltom the' 

19 truck to load the tractor up ar&d tie it wi.th ehalas aad 

zo booma cad eve~ythtoa. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

tt•a like a cotton trailer or aom•tbing? . . 
It's a flat trailer with a steel bed on it. 

A float? 

tes. a float. 

Patricio Garza and Tomaa Elizondo who were at 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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1 I the ranch, you don't know if Mr. Carrillo had separate 
! 

z 
1 

a~rangemeots with tbem and these other high school kids 
l 

3 ! that you sav to help him build the foundation on the 

4 weekends? 

5 A I don't know if he gave them an extra bonus 

6 o:t whatever he did, I don't know. 

Q You dontt know. But it was oa a weekand and 

they wereQ 0 t oa duty apparently. 

9 A KG p1robably hired them. He probably told them,. 

10 ••t '11 pay you ac much a day to go ac.d mf.x eemena;u or 

II somethlag. 

12 MR. !ASTER: That's all. 

13 (Mr. Doaaldaon is uow present.) 

14 

15 11' Ma. DOMLDSOlf 

16 le this th~ only occaaloG that you have ever 

17 

18 

19 

oluuueved oay equipment from the B.eclamatioa D1att"1ct 

betas opecctg,d on Judge Car:rillo'e raach? 

T-he only equipment f That • a a'bGut all they 

20 had, you kaov~ Bus: equipmeDt. that 'a a .. eut':ij: wh4t they 

21 had,~_tou kllOW. The rest were pickups. two 01r three 

22 pickups. 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

Whst cbout ·<county equipment? 
) 

1 dld see county •quipment there. 

what spectficallyt 
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18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Chapa - direct Z-47 ,./ 
------~! 

A We11 0 once I saw--th~re is a truck that's got 

one of-like the trucks from TP&L that's got that post­

hQle digaeroi. It was bought by the county I guess two 

or three years ago. I couldn't tell you when. I know 

it's now. I've soen 1t there oper(lted by Tomas 

Eltaondo. 

was a partition fe~ce; you know. 

land or sometb1ng. 

I guess it 

Ha had bought pome 

Q So I sue41e tl'u~y wetra dig;i~g post' h()les with 

itt 
' 

A tee• Po;at holes ao they could build that fence I 
I 

Q 

flea lt ce Q®nty equipment? 

A Tho license plate. 

Q ft• llQ~fise plate? Did it have a p:-ecinct 

numbe: on the aida~ or anytbitts? 

A Ho. They don't haVQ anythtca. 

Q lut you knew it to be--

A I koew 1t bGlonged to the county. 

Q --couaty_equipmeut? Did you see this on one 

oec~SlOQ or more than ODe OCC&tli.OQ.? 

A several. 

Q Do you remember about what time pe:t1od this 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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That could have been from- I can't say t:he 
'• 

dates because I don't know. I don't know the month, 

but I can say several occasions from 1973 uet1l three 

or four months ago. 

Q ·we~e you en Judge carrillo'e ranch oftea? 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

: 

1 used tc~ before. 

April the first of last year. 

Of ~74? 

And did you travel with hi~ a'lot? 

Yes, s1:r. 

You WGDt to his ranch wltb him a lo.tf 

Dtd you ever se{i taim buy · grocorieua? 

Yes, ail'. 

Did you eve~ see him pa1 for sroce~les? 

W':all, the lady yould, you know, get the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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siso tbe slip, you know 0 that came out from the adding 

mach1ae sad that vas it. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

He didn•t pay eaah? 

No. 

He would stan a ticket for the groceries? 

Re would sign a ticket. I even went myself. 

H$ would SG1ld nMll~ you ltnow. "Go buy sora~ m@ltlt•" "Go 

buy some cisal'ettGs." Go buy this, 1 wou w· s i3r& the 

Q 

that right? 

Yes. You: know .. on top.~ when I would go myself 

I would set his name en top~ you know» put "O .. P. 

carrtllo." oisned "By ituben Chap& ... 

Q 

A 

AtG you familiar with these white fc8d slips? 

Welfare orders? 

' 

Q 

A 

Welface orders? Do you kftow what th@y look lik ? 

tee. I*ve seec people usa them$ you kaow, 

whea they go to the doctor. I've seea Mr. Gon.aalet" 

y-ou kru•, sive them to people tbat sotnetimes th$y would 

so there to b.is office end ask bim for them. I happened 

to be there because bis office i.s 1a the same buildtns 

that I am ta. 

Q Di.d you ever see Judae .Carrillo ieaue any of 

25 ·'those ic paymeatfor groceries? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A No. I never saw him. ! I 
! l 
I i 

' ' ! :. II 
~ : 
I i 

3 ' l 
4 

I I 
5 lj 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

I 2 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q Do you know whether or not Judge Carrillo 

o~ns any coterp1llaro? 

A 1 have seen some at his ranch. I don't know 

who they balong to because my daddy is a welder. 

Q 

Q 

A· 

Q 

Your dad is a welder? 

Yes~ sir.. And he would repair those bulldozers 

~ho does your d&d work~ fo~? 

Sell smploy$d. 

You don't k~ow of you~ own knowledge whether 

or uot Judge Carrillo owns any bulldozers? 

A 

Q 

A 

I don • t i<~tow if he owns them or who owns them. 

Do you know whether or aot the Fa~ end Rancb 

&i;ht. 

I don't kaow. .· \ 

You aever bad occasioft to buy any cem~nt 

some,lue and ask, you ~'lriow, if I had ce•ent because the 

J-~laeeka would br:ltag me sOUie from the rigs. I would 

tell them0 "X dcm•t hav• aay but 70u caa go to tile rarm 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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aad Ranch .. " That's the only.place people caiil go and buy 

thiase; because there was nothing "lse there in town. 
I 

Q Your first name is Ruben? 

A auben. 

Q 

A 

Q 

What aro your initials? 

"R". 

(Ltiugl·u:er i) 

qo rou b.fve a middle :tnit1s.l? 

No .. 

1°m' so~~y. Okay. 

Suet Ruben Chapa. That's all it is. 

(Lau;hterl) 

bw;:do you·· ordinarily sign your iUlme? Do you 

r4 s.l;a ''aubeu C1:uapa" e.s a matte: of bus iaes s, os: do you 

1s elsa.'" .. Cbapa"? 

16 

17 

18 q 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 aot that 

22 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

Yes. 

He is _,. uncle. 

Okay. z· was tryiag to determine whether 

was the same Chapa .• 

mo. He is a mechanic for the school. 

For the school? 

(The witness nodded.) 

Have you ever signed any tickets for: the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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6 

BeEaavides tn'dependent School District, to your m~~ory? 
,. 

A Not that I know of. 

Q ~ave. you ever signed any charge tickets 

to your knowledse at Zertuche General Store? 

A No. 

Q I believe you testified earlier that when you 

7 bought merehandiGe--

8 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

A 

I paid eash .. 

So there was no use sisnin.s acy ticket. 

MR. DONALDSON: Could I get a sergeant 

oves= bet:e 8 please? Taka that to Mr. Chapa. 

Q l$ that your signature? 

No 9 sir. This signature ta from lltl ': 'Chapa. 

15. Be S.Sl · my w.tc le ,a.J;(lC-.. :· . He is a b~other to this man that 

16 

l7 

18 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

sia~ed here also. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

What ts fi•u: Cbapa·•s full ruunef 

.Recaldo Chapa. ll$ uaa the forsman of the 

The Benavides Iruiependent School District? 

so ehct is cot your signature on that. 

And your testimony 1a that you have never 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A No. This is Renaldo Chapa. 

Q :Is the Zertuche General Store--what is the 

reputation of the Zertuche General Store in the county 

dowa there? 

A What 1s what? 

Q 

1 everybody knew about it? 

8 

9 Q 

II 

12 nner heard· ct. !t? 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

2.3 

Q I heard s.ometid.rag about it laat night. 

That's how the people here know about it. I 

to m~ke tickets. (Laughter!) 

q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

You went to work for the Water D:tsta-iet in. •747 

When was tbat? 

Ap~til tbe first. 

Aprtl the first of 1 74? 

tee •. sir. 

Aed that is also the date prior to that date 

24 you were frieada of Judge Carrillo 'I 

25 A l was a close friend to him and tbea all of a 
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! I 

sudden he started--he quit going to the station. I said~. 

.. 'Well. I guess be doesn't want to be my friend." All of i 

his relatives quit going to my station. The only one 

that would go was his daddy until about, oh, I would 

say about th~ee months ago. 

Q So ha never did come by to take you around 

witb him a~' ~re? 

A No. 

Q Yo~ ~ever did tag along with him any after 

that? 

A 

Q You ~ever did go out to his ran~ any after 

th&H:! 

A No .. 

Q Have you ever worked for tha coucty? 

A 

Q For th$ cchool district? 

A No. 

Q Arad prior to April l, '74, you had never 

wo~ked for tb• Reclamation District? 

OW' aay of the pol:U:ic:al subdi.v!stono, the elty 

23 of anybOdJ else. the political subdivisions? 

24 You meaa employed by them? 

rardon me? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

.....-----__,...__,,....:c::h=a:.!:p:..::a:....· -·--=d-=t..=.r..=e-=.c.::..t _______________ 2 .-_5_5_·-·-·. 

A Employed by.the county or the school or what-

ever it is? 

Q 

A 

Q 

Right. 

Ro., sir. 

tou bad been self-employed prior to that? 

I a~~ b~ek from the service and then I 

Goiws bac~ just bri~fly and tho~ zem fiaished. 

Ift Novewber of '73 when you observed the use 

of tbis backhoe that you have stated to yout' kGOwledge 

you kc4W uc b.alcng to the Iieel4mat1on District$ did you 

obsGrv•~ Judge Carrillo using thla backhoe? 

A . W'ru~ft. I tell somebody? 

Q IU.3ht. 

A I asver told nobody. 

Q Until tonight? 

A Yea, air. 

Q Has s.ocething happened since November of '73 

thea that ukes it important to you that you should 

reveal the use of this? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A I think how come he used it and I couldn't 

use it. 

Q Thank you. 

A I'm a tax payer like he is. I guess I was 

obligated to use it also. 

MR. DONALDSON: Thank you. 

C!tA !Ri'iAlll HALE : Mr. Laney? 

Q Mr. Chapa, before tha time the Judge stopped 

10 buying gas ·from you 9 did he buy all his gas from you? 

11 A Moat of it:. He would spend about, oh, $700 

12 a month that I'm rrd.si:;ing now. 

Q Was that just what be used himself~ or was 

14 that hi. a workers (ln.d all? 

iS Tomas Eliz·ondo and Roberto Elizondo and him-

L6 self would go' buy, and Patricio Garea and sometimes hi a 

I7 nephews would go buy and fill up the car, his car. you 

18 know. and sign the ticket. 

19 Q What reason do you think that you all's 

w friendship stopped or the reason he stopped trading 

21 with you or your friendship stopped? 

22 A Well, last year-- I can't recall the--April the 

23 Sth, I guess it 'tfas t of last yea:r • I ran for the City 

z4 Council in Benavides, and I asked him for his support 

2s aad I asked his brother. Oscar$ and the man told me that 
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he was going to help me. I I was running for ~n unexpired j 
I 

l 
te• of Pat Gonzale5--he is deceased already; be bad died. 

8 

And they told me th•t--he had told me that they woul~ · 

help me out. 

About a yet: r prior to that I taad gone tc his 

daddy~ D. c. Chapa, and I told bim tllat I wanted to run 

. 
"Ae loag .as I'm here 1 the man that•s here right now as 

9 Cents table is go :tng , to st<itly there." So I d ich1 • t go to t-is 

10 daddy beuuse I knew he was not going to give me the 

II suppo~t. He bad failed on me on~ time so I said what's 

l3 

14 tlu~ man tbil.lt was ~n.n1na with anot;her frie11d of mine waa 

1 ~ r•tain£ fo't· otayott. . Tbey came out tied :1ft· the elect lot\. 

16 lo wa had ~ recotu:~t. And Distlti.ct Judae Cait"illo said 

17 

18 

20 

2l 

22 

that tbe Dliiyor. the fortaer mayor.thet-e tbiiit has always 

been clu~rQ woa the election in the recount. lt came out 

OCUvio Saeaz • he's the mayor, be's been mayor tor I 

doa' t kaow how maay ytiuuts ·t) wen. 

so we ~tarte-d id.ad of brGak1og otus rG1at,:lonsiU.p 

23 aod OV$~ytbias. you kaow. !beG his brotbGrt Oscar, %an 

24 i.• May last yee.~it wsa le,e t yeu. A 'ft\~tb afte&" that 

2s eleotloa hls lu:othel:' :rao... I was s close fri~~U.td of Oscar 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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too. I was with him sometimes. I would go everYWhe~e 

2 with h~: Rio Grande, eve~ywhere. When he ran for 

3 

7 

8 

Representative I would go with him aad help him out in 

his ca~pat:ntns and everything. So I said tbat I 

could11't G\lpport ltlm.,· you know, tc the election this 

time. 

Q 

A 
' 

For Seta& tor. ilecu-aus'e he dian~ t help me 

9 eleher, so l said !!I cuut • t help you t:d.ther." So I 

10 fUd.d 1 ''Y.ou ~o yo,ur way and I~ 11 go my way." And he ran 

11 &3Qiast Senator John Traeg~r. &Gd he lost for the second 
'• 
i 

12 

13 Q You were support1ng Senator Traeger? 

14 A Yes, sir~ The~ I ran for the school board just 

15 this year, Ap~tt, and since then,. ai!llce May of last yeax-

16 they just quit going to my etatioa. 'lhat•s · f.t. They 

17 do't go ao GlOre. 

18 Q tou said they slaced up for about $700 worth 

I9 of sas a mo~tb at your station. Did you eve~ see the 

20 Judge or amyor;.e else fill up arayt~here else with aasolf.ne? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Probably that Gulf service statloft. or Exxon. 

WUI about from th• county taa.ke? 

I d~n•t know-. Eithe: purchased or got lt. or 
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Q This Pat Goru:.al~::. ~bat you spoke of a while 

3 aao that you-- I believe you said you were running for 

4 b1a unexpired term or something. was he deceased? 

5 A Yes. sir. 

6 Q 

7 testimofty yeste%day that worked at this Farm &ad Ranch 

s Store? 

9 

10 Q 

I I 

13 Q 

15 

16 

17 

19 . 

Or Farm Supply? 

Re -aa an employee of the county and worked at 

lfo w&y. 

MR. ~\NEY: That's al1, Mr. ChairmaG. 

GiLA IW>IAN HALE : ~Is • Thompson 1 

zo rrelattvcas worked for the s<ehool system or the Water 

21 Distriet and the county •. 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

My re.letivet'if 

Your relstives. uncles. 

No •. Tb.ey work fo~: tb.e eehool.· 

we-.-ked foi:" the school? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A At that time they were working for the school. 

Q They don't work for them now? 

A Ther~•o one. There's Edward Chapa--he's my 

daddy's b~other--cnd there's Rael Chapa--he's a cousin 

but I call him an uncle. But he's a mechanic for the 

school. He has been a mechanic for I don•t know how many 

yeara. He~a got hi~ own snap, his own place where they 

Q Did he go to anyone for his job to get it or 

did be just spply like you did? 

A I don't knr.nu. He probably could bave gone to 

JudGe Carrillo bee~uoe he was the P;:Qsident of the Board 

thoae yaars, thoas beck years. I don't know. I don't 
·, 

koow ~ow Qny yea.ro he's been mechanic. 
· ... '("' 

Q You r.uai.d e.n:rliGr tbat you tagged ~long some-

times &tld wetrrtt out to the Judge's ranch. 

. A Yes, ma.' auie 

Q Df.d you 60 cut to the Judge's ranch on an1 

time that you were supposed to have beea at your job? 

A At my job? 

Q Yes. 

A I was i.\Ot employed them. I iuad my own station. 

Q Well, during the time that you WfU!'t employed. 

A No .• Stnee April the let:, from there on. of 

'74 I nner tagged along or they never picked me up any 
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more .. 

Q Sioco before April. 

A Before April? 

Q Yes. 

A Of '74? 

Q 

A Yea~ before April of '74, yes. After April of 

e 74 I rulver. 

Q 

mo~ I rscommendsd--

Q Geaeral ZH::or~ for-let me finish my question. 

please. sir. 

Did you ever reeomm.ead any of your frier1da to 

either of thos.a two stores to so th$tt6 to gGt food if 

the7 uctte in ~aed of food and fill out one of those 

11hl$:& vcuoiu.a!"a that you saw that th~ Comrd .. tt~h~ t\ad here 

earli$r? 

20 the We !.fare? 

21 

22 

q 

A 

23 them to go to Cleofus Gonsalea. I peas one time waa for 

24 medici.rte od sou lady that had to see the doetor or 

25 sgettd.q. I pees. b.~ gave them the order. :t told them 
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I 
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I 
I 

to go to Cleofus to the Farm and Ranch Supply and see if 

thoy'll Jive you ono, and I guess he did because they 

nover came back Qnd ookod me again. 

MS. THOMPSON: That's all, Mr. Chairman. 

thaak. you. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Weddington? 

BY Ma. WIDDIIGTOlf 

Q Mr. Chapa. how much of a discount d1d you get 

vh.ea you bouaht you pickup? 

A WheD . I bout~ht my piekU}')? 

Q , ••• 

Ho dtcoouttt. 

Q Did you buy lt in the Fall? 

I bouaitt: tt ta Movomber of '73. 

Q Iao't ~~t usualLJ when they give discounts 
...... ,. 

on Jtuyf.q p!okups? 

A' Yes. •ut C:bo cer that I traded in I still owed 

on.lt to they couldn't si.ve !le uy discount. 

t 'f!ot evaa off the· purchaa.a price? 

A· Pc~bmbly tbsy aav~ ae oo•thlng but it was aot 

toe-.h~ 

. q l'm earprt.oed you Otl.A temembor ao clearly whea 

you bftpt that tle!Jup. Wh$t ao.~'W it so olecu: in your 

mfiA4 that 1• wt1s: Jloveabar? 

A Becauoe my t;ruck was eo•• I had ju.et bought it 

HtCKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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in November of 1 73. 
I' 

l l' Q When dtd you buy the car before that? 

3 l A A year before, and I had some trouble with it 

4 ao I traded lt in because I still ow•d--

5 Q Wbat date did you buy lt? 

6 A My cart 

7 Q fes. 

8 A It wae bought in December of '72. 

9 Q Do you ~emember what month you bouaht all your 

JO care ia? 

11 A Yes. Because, you know, wben I don't pay them 
I 

12 I ltl11 sot the coupon book there aad I can look at them. I 
13 

14 

Q 

A 

OkaJ. 

You see 0 I make raoathly paymGnta. I doa't 

I5 pay theGJ cash. 

16 You aa1d that none of the people who were 

I7 worktq who were officers 1L'l 1 I believe you satd that 
I 

1s Glib bymond f.s pa:.esida t of what? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q 

A 

q 

Oah Raymond. 

Is precldeat of ~hat? 

The Wate~ District. 

And you 4.rd.d that noaa of the offtcet:s of the 

23 water Dlatrtct curreatly 4t'e related to Judae Carrillo. 

24 Is thee cor~:ect:? 

25 

Q They He not related? 
HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A 

2 Q 
I 

3 I . A 
I 

4 Q 

s are-

7 Q 

8 A 

9 Q 

They are not related. 

How do you know they are not related? 

Because I know they're not related. 

And you know who their famtly ts and who they 

Whose family? 

Yhoae people who are the officers. 

Why did you answer a question a while ago 

10 that you did DOt bow whether any of those p~ople were 

II related to the C&Dales family? 

12 They asked me if F. H. Canales was related to 

13 Terr1 Cacales ~ and I said "I don• t know." 

14 Q Row ia it that you know he's cot related to 

t5 Judao Carrillo but you doa•t kilOW whether ott not he's 

r6 r•lated co Tetory Cau.le o? 

17 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

A 

Uho, F. H. C•nales? 

·Y.oa. 

Because I asked hlm. I asked F. H. canalea 

20 if be was ~elated to o. P •• and be • a not. If he is, he 

21 pltebably lted to me. 

22 Q 

z 3 Ctt&Ullea? 

24 

25 Q 

•. 

Rave you ever asked btm if he was kia to Terry 

-~ never tuave • He mi&ht be • 

Have you asked every aember of the Board 
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whether or not they are kin to Judge o. P. Carrillo? 

A I know who is related there in town and lfho is 

Dot relatad. It 1 a a small town. 

Q Thcan why don't you k11ow whcather or not they 

ere related to Terry Canales? 

A 

Q 

F_. Q. canales? 

Any of them. 

MR. CANALES: Mrs. Weddingtoft, I live in 

Freemont. which ts about 40 miles away from Benavides 

and I ver7 aeldom go to Benavides. 

A I have known him for about two years, I guess, 

and I uve bar.dly- I just see him oqce in. a while aad 

that's about it. I do see o. P. Carrillo every day in 

14 t••· I do see,r. H. Canales and everybody lo town. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

a ad I kaow who ls ~elated there in town. I earu'lot te 11 

you if everybody iD town, who ta related aftd aot related, 

l>ltt I know tbeee !ndivlduals that are not related. 

Aro any of the people curreatly on the Beard 

related to the Pat-ra? 

On the Board of the Water District? 

Yes. 

Ia, ma'am .. 

They are not related to either the Cerrillos 

Tho)? ttre aot related to cd.tber oae. 
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Q 'You said tbet you have been very good friends 

with the Jud$e up unti~ April of •74. Is that correet? 

Q Uh buh,. 

Q ·And that you were out at his place on a 

weekend in N~vember of '73? 

A November of '73. Yes. 

Q So;you all were good frie1.1ds from November 
. ~~ ~ 

through Apr·i~ t 

A Yes. 

Q And durittg that time did ~· ~ett111.contto.ue to 

pick you up reaular1y<and you would go with him? 

A From lfovemher to Apr i 1? 

Q Yea. 

Q Did you ever so back out to the same raneh? 

A .Oftoa. I would go often. I would even go 

huatllll at his raach. 

Q The samo ranch you went to durina-

A Well, he'~a S<'t two or tht:ee ranches beh1ftd 

titere, you bow. . . 
Q Did you .ver go back to the same rarteh:durtng 

that .l,ttll"i~~~·•f ttaa?· 

Yaa, ma'am. To the ranch house? 

q What did they butld on that foundatioo? 

A !hey built--they say it's a ato~e. !hat's what 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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3 I 

he said he was building, a store, a grocery storeG 

Because it's at an int$rseetion between Hebbronville and 

Free~ and it's about I would say forty miles--there ts 

4 nothiQS in between. Re was goins to open a grocery 

5 store. Arad the people that come from Benavides through 

6 

7 

8 

thGt highway, they could stop there and buy something. 
' 

I 

There are a lot of little ranches around there. you 

9 Q · &ave you seen that store since it was finished? j 

10 A Just the outside. I 
11 Q But you do know thea what was being buf.l t on I 
12 that foU!ldatioa! 

13 Well, lte had told me he was going to build a 

14 store whell he was builcU.o.g it. 

15 

16 

17 

is 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q And then you have seen the store sioce and you 

kaw f.t ia a store? 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

otstsf.de. 

It doeo• • t ha<ve acy signs or anytbl.ns on it. 

la tt open for bus1ftess? 

lfo. It was aever fialchect, I guess. 

Wbat do you meaa, you guess? 

If it "aa flaisbed it would be open. 

What uas it like the last time you aaw 1t? 

Well, it's finished throusb the outside. It's 

U't Uka aay ordinary bouoa that h ff.abhad. J 
HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Q Did you win your seat on the school board? 

Ma. 'am?· 

Did you run for the school board? 

Y • es 11 ma am. 

Did you win a seat on the school board? 
.. ·- .. -- _,_ 

Yes. ma am. -- ···- ..... , 

Q How much do you get paid for be iag o~,- the· 

school boud? 
,,_. 

J)loth1ag. 

Dow much time do you have to speed being on 

the school board?· 

Q 

A 

Q 

Just whea they have meetings. 

How often is that? 

Well, we've been having a lot lately. 

'\ 

Are you still sitt1f\8 as c member of,the 

school board? 

Well, there ar• two boards. I doa't know 

19 which oae to alt lu. (Laughter!) 

20 Whloh board are you oat 

21 l coutda•t answezo that rlsht now. 

' l 
/ 

22 Q llected or appointed? You were 011 the elected 

2 3 hoard eben t 

24 A 

25 Q 

Yea. aas•am. I'm on. the elected board_. 

Who ls glvtng you sae trouble about whether 
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or not you are elected? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Who is giving me trouble? 

Yes. 

That· I •m elected or not elected? 

Yes. 

2-b9 

6 I j A Nobody :l.s giving me trouble that I'm elected or\ 
I 

1 oot elected. I'm elected. 

8 Q Is anybody giving you any trouble about 

9 ~bGt~e~ or aot you are lawfully serv1Qg as a member of 

10 the school board? 

11 A 

12 q 

13 A 

14 

' 

Not rtpt now. Probably later on. 

Who do you exp~ct that would be? 

The Judge aittins here. 

MS. WEDDINGTON; That's all, Mr. 

15 Cha lean • Thank vou. 

16 CBAIJlMAN HALE: Mr. Chavez? 

17 BY MR. CHAVEZ 

18 Q Do I uaderetand you that there are two boards? 

r9 two school boarcts? 

20 A fbere are two boards. that I know. 

21 Q That J'OU ka.ow? Wbea did the secoad board 

22 eome la? 

23 The Decoad board came i.a I would ••1 about 

24 ahree Fridays ago, when. all the suspended or what-they 

2s h4•• beaa suapeued. I guess., 01r-

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Q Were you removed from office? 

A 

Q 

That have been removed from office temporarily. 

Have you been temporarily removed from office? 

A No. Not yet. 

Q Has anybody on the school board that got 

elected with you, have they been removed from office? 

Q 

A 

Q 

That have been elected with me? 

Yes. 

Not yet. 

Rave any of the elected s~hool board members 

beea removed from office! 

A Four or five of thea, I guess. 

Q They have been removed? 

A They ha•e been removed. 

Q By a. court: order? 

A By a court order. 

Q Do you bow how these court orders get out? 

A I doa•_t bow. They haven't &1ven me one yet. 

Q Do you ltttOW how a judge • aa.y juda•-- , 

A I su•sa somebody aou 4Dd Bi&DS l1ke • complaitltl 

or somothf.a; to ~be District Attotttey 0 or somebody, and 1 

for: some r:oaaoa or otbe&-. Olld thea thoy talto f.t to tho I 
judsc aed 

aiaao lt, 

q 

I IJl,lOCa ho coaot.flere it or eomQthlq aa.d 

OJ! 

All 

t1hatever it ls. 

l'Qbt. That .to what I'm 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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it. 

2 Q If somebody reports something wrong that 

3 somebody bas done something illegal it's his duty to see 

4 that an investigation 1s made and do whatever is nece-

s J asary to carey out any prosectuion? 

6 Yea, sir, I guess. He is in charge of the 

1 sraad juJ:y or whatever. 

8 Q If the district attorney does not so to the 

9 judge with 4ay complaint. any petition to remov• 

10 officer~ • then tb.e .fdc-e really eaa' t remove tha? 

'11 1 doa't think so. 

12 1 .aaa he doesa't just on his own some day 

13 P'-Ch up the phone aod say, "I'm loiag to remove so and 

'J4 oo t" wl thout anybody comins to bJ.m. 

.15 I don't kaow • 

16 
' ., 

11 soir&S to .. remove yt>u? 
: .. , 

18 

20 Q 

21 thos? . 

22 .A POt' OO&tltbiq, just trha,t I t'G&d ira the papers. 

23 Q You don*t have acy personal knowledg~ of why 

24 b<a baa sr..,.cad aay o.f theee people? 

25 l doa't kQow. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Q Have you attended any court sessions as to 

why 0 to see what is--

A One or two. I was there for a while and 

then I left. 

• MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I'm sure as 

far as Mr. Chavez• questions are concerned, I have 

w1tt'U!ll&es on. this point that the removals began after a 

pl'880 release that was made I believe on March 19th 

by Judge o. ,P. Carrillo that he w.ts splittins wtth the 

old part)' 111nd a day or two later they removed four 

or five member; of the school board. The testimony is 

forthcoming. I doa't think 
.,1 

this witness can tell you 

what actually happened. '· I He ls n.ot here in that capac :f. ty • I 
I 

but you•re welcome to cross examine or examine him on 

that. 

You aaid that: you thought that probably you 

Olight be r_...,ed o: mtaht luwe some problems with the 

_Judge later oa. 

q 
A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Uh huh. 

,Jtas aaybody told you this? 

lfo • Just my t hi raking. 

Hohody has tb~aatened you? 

h. Rot yet. 

Spec:lfioally, Judge Carrillo? 
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Q He hasn't told you, "You've only got a few 

days left to serve on the school board?" 

A No 1 he hasn't told me~yet. 

Q No one from his offi~e has come to you to tell 

you? 

A mo. 
Q B. hasn't in any way restricted your activity 

as a s~hool board me•ber? 

A lfo. 

Q Or has he interfered with you or your family 

la aay other way? 

A Ro. 

Q EitJter he or any of his asent4 1 friends, 

employees? 

A Noae of them. 

Q . Apparently what I gather is that you and the 

,fudge h$d a polltlcal fight, I auess 0 or partlns? 

4 Split. 

Q You apllt. All t!abt. I guess you'z-e not 

too fl"ieadly w1 th the Judge and his party? 

A He doGsr&'t sreet me; I don't greet him. 

Q All rtsbt. Now, if you war• still ta aood 

araeea t:7lth tbe J'udae and bta po1.1t1c.al party, would you 

come douD here and testify? 

A If I tJQS still iD .his party? 
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Q Yea. 

A Would I come aftd testify? Yes. 

Q Even though you might be getting him in 

trouble? 

A It was wrongdoil'lg, wasn't it? 

Q 'what was wrongdoing? 

. Tald.Gg the backhoe over there and the cement. 

Q You don't kcow if he had permission to take 

it ovet ther(!. 

Bow can you get pGmission to take cement 

tbet doesn't belong to you? (Laughter.) 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Do you know that be took­

Hem's that? 

Who does it belong to? 

The county. Duval County. 

Aad uho operates that pracinct? 

lis brother, J.amiro Carrillo. 

Do you think that Ramiro Carrillo has the 

authority to sell cement? 

A If be bought it through Zertuche Fa~m and Ranch 

or wbcarcave~: he bou1ht it. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Whero have you gotten this information? 

I beard it ia town. 

You don't have personal knowledge of these 
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I 

A I don't have no records, nothing. 

Q Forget the records. I mean, you weren't there 

when aDy of tbe•e transactions took place, were you? 

A Wben the cement was unloaded? 

Q Whea somebody bought something from Farm and 

ltancb aadr:La•tl•d a receipt or an invoice from Zertuche? 

A Was: I there when they went and bought cement 

aad.tbe,. ud• 1t-

Q Cement or aayt:biltg elae. 

A I doa•t know if they made a ticket, to whoever 

they made it whea it was picked up. 

Q Were you here.last evening, last night? 

A Whea' it was picked-

Q Last olaht. Were you here last night? 

A Lfl·$~ R.llbt?:.. ,_ • .. : o9 .\, ,.:,l. .: 

Q Yeo. 

A ~ae 1 here? 

ca. toe .. 

J. Yeso sir. ~ : .. aa here all night. 

Q You beard the teattaoay of this man Gonzalel? 

A 'l<~s, slr. 

Q 'lboso thiaaa that he testified about: that 

tho eow:at:r t~ou.ld buy thin&o from Zertuche but actuallJ 

the •~:obcadlaG c.uarao fr011 Farm and· Raach ao.d Zertuche 

lavolcGd tl\CD ser:ubAild:lse. Do you havQ persoul kaO'#ledae 
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of any of these transactions taking place? 

A Do I have a,ay personal know ledge? Do you 

mean that:--

Q That you know yourself, saw or participated 

in in any way? 

A Juet what I heard Mr. Gonzale£ say. 

7 Q Okay. 
§ 

8 A t guess his wot'd is good, if he says it. 

9 Q You also heard that he has testified at some 

10 grand jury? Did you hear that last night 1 that he has 

11 appeared before a grand jury? 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

A Yea, he has. 

Q Have you appeared before a grand jury? 

A No 0 sir. 

Q Are you under subpoena to any grac.d jury? 

A No, s:lr.· 

I underetand that they were going to start a 

tr.iat dowa tberet in Rio Grande City Monday., Were you 

subpoonaad to eppeaz- :ta that proceeding? 

A Ito. No. sir •. I ; wasn • t. 

Are you· sure th~t your appearing here and 

22 testifyin& is not political J:evenge? 

23 

24 

21) 

A · What do 1ou mean, "politic.al revenge"? 

Q Yn':ro not trying to get back at the Judge? 

A Ko. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



., 
" i 

I 

i 
3 

I 
4 I 

'/ 

'I I I 
5 II 

I 

6 I 
7 

8 

9 

10 

Jl 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Cha a 2-78 

Q He's your political enemy but you wouldn't do 

anything like that to hurt him? 

A No. 

Q Intentionally. 

A Tomorrow or the day after he knows something 

about me and he thinks I was 'l'ln:ongdoing, let him come 

aa.d testify bere. Do the same. 

Q Besides. that particular ra.~.tch. does he own 

any other property iu other counties, for instance, 

laredo, Rio Grande City and in that a%'ea? 

A lie owns some land in Iiebbrol\v1lle, outs ide of 

Hebbroavllle, and I don't know of lio Grande. I know 

he's aot a ranch io Rio 0~4Qde because I went once. But 

I do~a•t know who it belonas tot if it's his, if it's 

reaced or tf~·:tt•e loaned or .gave it to him ozo what. 
' 

Q At ... v of these other 'places tulve you seen 

county equlpaect belq used tbero? 

A ' Wbei'O? 

q A't aay of these other ranches 1 

.A Not ill those ones 0 but the one out.side of 

BG:t,aavldos I have • 

Mil. CHAVEZ: 'lh4Dk JOU• Mr. Chairmaa. 

IY CIIAIM2AI BALl 

Q Mt'. Chtapa. when did 10u become a me•ber of 

the achool hoard? 
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A 

Q 

April• the day I won~the electiol.'lt April 5th. 

Of what year? 

A This year. 

Q 1975? 

A Yea. 

Q la t~at the Benavides Independent School 

District?· 

A 

Sir? Q 

A Yea, sir. The Benavides Independent School 

~ lad.~:7~~:ever been a member of that school 

boarc:l priol" to April of 1975? 

lo, sir •. · . .. 
Q I aot1eed one or two things that· .. ~eem to be 

·. 
of coincideac$ to rae • One • you aaid you wel'e·· -~ good 

. . 
fr1ead of Judae Carrillo up until about April 1;·"1974, 

. .. "t ' . • 

· . ... 
Also, you 

~Gat to work for Duval Couaty &bnaervation and 
·,_ 

aecloutJ.'Oa Df.otrtct oa April 1. ~974. Are both of 

tboee otateaa~ta cotaoect? .--

I ·wont to vork April 1st, of· 1974 for the 
\. 

Wate&' Diatrl,ct~ ~od as I said from April 1st, I'm 

talklq from there ori·, .. from April let, or it c~ld have 
\ 

. I 
I 

I 

I 

I 

beea the 3rd or 4th, you·- know, uhe11 we just split. 

~--------~~----J HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



,_,__----~C~b!!!!a~a ____________________ 2..::.8JL._ .... , 

Q Did your split with Judge Carrillo result in 

) your getting the job with the Water District? 
. ' 

.i I pess. Hie nephews were in the Water 

4 District, and some of his relatives were working there 

s at the Wat•r District. I took one of the positions of 

6 one of hie nephews, The position that I have right now 

7 beloqed to oa.e of. his nephews. 

8 Q Wtaa his n·ephew fired? 
,.··j 

9 No. He quit oa himself. 

10 Q I believe you stated prior to Apr11 1, 1974 

u that Judge ca.s:rtllo acd hf..a family traded with you at 

12 your Texaco station and averaged about $700 a mouth. 
I 

13 to that %l&bt? 

14 

IS 

J6 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 .· 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

.A 

Q 

q 

Just h1m. 

JU.&t hta? 

Juat htm. 

Aad yo.ur salary vltb the Duval CoUGty Cof\serva-

W.ll._ lt'a $700. 

W•• there aa,. relationship between. those? 

How dld they arrive at how much aalary they 

110~ did the)' crrive what? 

ll$17 dld -they dt.u:en.ia~ bow juch tb.•y would pay 
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·~ ' 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 . 

''· ·:, 

'8· 
::, >· ..... 

' . : . ' ' 

·· .. ;·9; ,: ·. 
;· ... ' 

10 ' 

you when you weat to work for the 'Water Diatrict? 

A Wbea 1 weat to work for the Water District? 

Q Y••• alr. 

A .. That waa the •••• salary that h11 aephew was 

aet•f,.q 1a tb.at poaltloD so that's the salar1 I got. I 

wtai 1 oould have aottq aore. but that is it. 

CIAJ._. IIAJiBJ Are the~re aay ottler. 

•~•u.u ••• c:u c-ttc••' 
YICI ClfAUMMI MALOIID ·Yea; ·•lr. .··· . . . . .·~. 

CBAliMAB BALl& Vw. Maloney bas .so•• 

ll~'· .............. , ........ ·· .. '... . .. , 

u. 

._. ... ··••• til• CO.••natlu · D'ttl'toc ••• b•lq \l8ecl. ·,;•' .:l' '' : .. • . ' ., . ··. ' ' - . - . 

,. ·A . . . .Cilia •*••·•• aodad.-. ) .. · : ,:'?:, .·- - •', -· ·: .. i<i-. . '•' ··. . 
·.·:.'. ·,_ • f' 

,. · ... t ... · ~ •..•• ,~r._,. ••• .......... , ........ . . . . . ::-i : ·, ;. -~-- :·;_ 

.. ~ ... ,:1' .... ~ pnpe~~' ,._ ued Of' tile "-'•••• 

. . · .· ·t~~ :; 

"··· ·. ·. t't . :: · .. ~. •, . :.-. . ,.~.;; ~~~. , ...... ~-~-t 
I '.~' :.~ ,. ' w ' 

·i9 :.··. :·,, . :: •... fJ~:t::·•lw. , 
.. :' . ~· . '. 

'; ·. 
\' : '' ~ .. 

. . · i-'·.q·· ... · .,~'••t• tho·•• .oeo•·~~·,·. 

~ :. ~:,. · .. LJike t ·,,t~W 7"• .,x\ :oouida't alve 1•• tbe 21 

··.,,:;· 

:, .. 
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tell you exact dates or years or anything. The last time; 

2 I saw something there was about three months ago. Not 

3 1 to recall it, 1 1 11 tell you one thing. About a month 
I 

:j ago--about a month and a half ago--please don't ask me 

date, because I don•t know- I was there at my house, 

the 1 

I 

I 
5 l 
6 I· 
7 

8 

9 

the trailer house, outside my trailer house, and the 

couaty truck passes to the other street in back of my 

station loaded with a caterpillar atld a root plow on it. 

And lt was takea and I gueae the lowboy belortgs to the 

10 couaty.. I bow the truck belongs to the eounty. And 

II 

13 

14 

it was driven by Tomas E11aoado. It was taken too. P.'s 

q 

A 

Bow do you know tbat? 

Because I saw it. I went out. Later on I 

15 eellt tasslq aloaa. 

16 Q Whyt 

A ,.o see vbero it waa golttg. 

18 
Q . Why?' 

19 " A Because he was uslns th• equtpmeut,., A lot of 
·' 

20 people would like to ·use that: equipment too, you know. 

21 Why were you ao parttcula:r:ly 1nttarested i:n it 

22 oa th4t occasion? 

23 B•cauge it was wroagdoias. 

24 Q Woll* you had aeon some wrongdotns some two 

25 yeewp hefol!'e aad you hedn • t repot-ted lt to .anyone • had 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
. AUSTIN, TEXAS 

I 

I 
\ 
! 

l 



2 . 

3 I 
I 

4 I 
s I , 
6 I 

7 

Cha a 2.-83 -

you 'I 

If he's got a big tractor, or whatever he's 

sot, he should have a truck. I guess, of his own to move 

lt. 

Q Was it part of your job to follow these people 

arow:ld and see where the property is being used? 

A Jro, f.t 1 s cot my job but I just happened to go. 

s I weat to a.ee wher~a it was goln.g, where :lt was goins to 

9 ao won at • 

10 Q Di.cl you follow on any other oc"Cas1oas any 

u ·county prope~:ty out to see where lt was going to be 

12 uaecJ? 

13 

14 Q You did see coucty property in the ·City, 

15 d ida • t you! 

16 . A ID. the city? 

17 Q Ia. the clty or there about your station. 

1a You bad seaa couuty property around your station before, 

19 luld you aot 1 

20 

21 

22 

Q 

A 

Wa11, paaoln& throuah thel'e. 

Did JOU follOtt aay of those others? 

Bo. t just wanted to see wbere that tractor 

23 UQS Go1n& 0 ~hare it was going to go work. 

24 Q We11 0 but you d1da't know where these others 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Chc!pa ___________ ?._::8~---·-

A Whlch,othet ones'/ I can't be followiag every 
; 

truck that passes through there from the county. 

Q I was just wondering why. 

A Well, b•cauae I wanted to know,. that's why. 

I WQnted to know for myself where it was gotng. So I 

followed it and I know where it went. 

Q Now that you knew where it went, wbat did yau 

do about it? 

I just kept on going. I p4ssed along aDd-

10 tbc!la later Oil I turned back and came back to town. 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 . 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

?3 

24 

25 

Q Dld you tbe.n report tbat to aayor1e? 

A Ro. I just kept it to myself. 

Q And thie is the first tiae you have told-

A I just Whted to know for myself. 

Q Is tb.la the first time you have told anybody-

1 W&$ aot aoiag to write. 

A I cav the tractOJ: gotq by loaded ott that tr\lck. 

It'o .a tractor, that ls "hat it is. 1 said it belonss to l 
t:ho ~tatJ·~.. .. IC •a aot his. tf you had troecots:o wouldn • I 
J'OU like to, uoo same equipment that you ec.ulda 't have to 

pay fo~ 1t 1 eave mo.ey or oomathia3t 

Q 

A 

Asrs )'ou mBd b&cause )'OU di.da't a•t to use lt? 

mo. Bocnuoe tbere are a lot of people that 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

would like to use it. 

Q Like wbom? 

A A lot of people there in town that would like 

to use so~thing. get some beaofits out of it. Why 

does he get benefits when the other people can't get 

6 benefits out if it? If it bel.onss to the county it 

7 should stay U1 the couraty aad that 1 s it. 

8 Is it your position that if it belongs to the 

9 COUDCJ it should stay in the couaty 8 or is it your 

10 poaltton. that if the Judge is golrag to use it everybody 

11 ought to be. 4b le to? 

12 They should lend it to somebody else. 

13 Q .ADd you were st111 a little bit bot because 

14 JOU clf .. do • t &Gt co use that backhoe whon you wan ted to • 

15 

16 

17 

Q 

A 

Ro, I'm oot bot about ·the backhoe. 

••• was the posthole dlgaer used? 
' 

Laat year. Please doa.•t ask me dates because 

rs l doa' t lulott. 
\ 

19 Q Was it before or after the occasicm of the 

20 bnckboe·? 

21 Befo.re cbe occasion. thcay were bu1ldil'l8 

22 aomo putitioas of land that be had bought aad be was 

23 ~oot plou1Q& it and raking it, aad it hAppens to be like 

24 I tell you. I would ao to his ranch very often. They 

I 
I 

i 
I 

I 

2s t70to raold.aa soae partitions of laod because be had knocked. 

I 
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Chapa 

down the brush, raked it and everything, and he had 

planted some bubble grass. So I guess he didn't want 

for the cows' to go in there so that's why he was making 

the partition. He had that thing. 

Q I beliGV~ you testified that Tomas Elizondo 

6 was an employee of the county.. Is that right? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, str. 

What d~d he normally do for the couaty? 

;For the county? 

R:I.Sfht. ,. 
I nevo~ eeea him work for the county. 

1 thouabt you said he was an employee of the 

13 couttty. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

H• is an employee of the county and getting 

paid f:oom tho county. but he is an employee at bia ranch. 

Ct O. P. 1 s l'&Och. 

You nner oaw him doing any work any place 

oltH.a? 

t9 A Rot that I know of. 

20 Q Did be work from day to day • or just on. odd 

21 jobet was be there every day? 

22 A Where? 

23 Q At the, Judae's ranch? 

24 A I oaa.'t say that he's there at the ranch, but 

z5 he • o ta his vehicle every day. ta tb.e Juctse • s t:ruck or 
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car or w~atever it is. 

Q HotJ do you know that he was paid by the 

county~ 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

I know he's paid by the county. 

How do you know? 

I get iaformed. 

Bow did you get infotmed? 

I went to the Coucty Au·ditor '' office .. 

·Wheat 

I suess it was about four months ago. 

2-87 

11. Q Four moaths ago? . . . How long do ycu know he had 

12 b$$D. ~~-ld.Q& ftn: the OOU;Dtf? 

' 
13 A Prtor ·to that I had asked also. 

14 

15 

Q 

A 

16 csked. 

17 

18 

1 hes your pardoa? 

Prior to that, you kno•, yeara before, I had 

Asked whom? 

.Thereat the County Audttor's offtc •• The 

I9 I'OOOI'de .tfcal.'e puhtic 0 I auosa. 

20 ·MI. CANALES 1 . Eacu.se me, Mr., Cba irman. I 
'· 

21 btlVG Ml". 0C1UlY1o. Hiaojoaa here who bas wlth. him the 

22 coucty reccu:ds oa payrolls. and he will testtfy to the 

23 effect that Jb:. Toaa.s Elizondo was employed and has been 

24 co eaployect for quite a wblle. I tbia.k the laat check 

25 is oemothiq in '75. Be is more familiar with the point. 
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9 

10 

11 

I 2 

13 

i4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

lf you wo~ld prefer to'have someone who is familiar. 

MR. MALONEY: I wouldn't prefer right now. 

Q I would like to know why, yau felt _it ~:necessary · 

if you already knew this man was employed by the county 

that you usnt to check his records four months ago? 

A ~o Gee if he was still employed by the county. 
! I 

Q Did be do anythia& that made you think be 

ltQSll'tf i 
I 

A !he Judg$ could have gotten him on his payroll, j 
I 

with all the raaehes he's got, equipment artd, cattle and J 

ovor,t~laa. I guess he could afford to pay. Aad I said, I 
well. let ae so cbeck a~d see if he's still Oft the peyrol~.' 

Q Do you kaow Rober: to Elizondo? J 

Q 

A 

q 

A 

ls he any relation 

They're brothers. 

Dld he work for the 

Did he work for the 

to Tomas Elizondo? 

eounty? 

oouaty? Yes, sir. He 

ctill does, I suosa. 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Did you check bltJ records too? 

Yos. elr. I checked both of them. 

Like I told you, I ~anted to know. 

I thouaht you already knew. 

Prior to that when I checked years back I 
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' 

checked Robert Elizondo and he was on the--he had claims : 

or whatever you waDt to call lt. 

Q You s~arted checking people and you started 

following, county equipment around while you, yourself, 

vera on the county payroll. 

A I didn't start followiDg people and county 

equtpmeat. I waated to eheck on those two persons. not 

two. but th~ee. Patricio Garaa. 

Q You~WEr.t"e checkinc on Pat;icio Garza? 

A You see, I wanted to kaow whether they were 

ge&:ttcs palda or what. And thea I follond that truck tol 

see Wber:e it ~as gotnc. But I was not followtng county, 

you kaow 0 every day. I followed that oae and I checked 

oa those th!'ee. 

Q tfcm• x•m sorry, but I cannot recall what work 

JOU _ aatd Patrie to Garza dtd'·i; : 

A l;ie. ta a !'&ncb haft:d, ~epairs v1lldmill4. He's 

a eook at tJae·raacb. You call it, he does it .. 

Q Ao fa-r as you know he doesn•t work uy place 

ole• but at the Judge•s raach? 

A Well. there at t. ranch or whet:ber ia town if 

bG ts auaedecJ. I aucaas he's ·got a bar:n or something 

thGrQ f.a tOt1D.; the Judge. I peos when they need blm 

thoro, or t1herever they ft'jt~d him he'll.ao. 

Q Boo lol\a had Pat Coru:al•~ beer& OD the City 
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2-90 

Council b~fo,e .he passed? 

A . I don't know~ ·He could have been there for 

years. He could have been there four, six, eight years. 

I don't kllow. I know he had, been on the City Council 

vacant. 

Q It became vacant when he died. 
1. ' 

A It became vacant when he died and then--

I 
I· 
i 

Q And that' a when you ran for the City Council? I 

A Then soae months later they said they had a 

meetilll there at the City Hall and I attended the 

meetlDg to see what was going on, and it came up that 

there was a vacant seat, you know, on the City Council. 

So I told them that I wanted to run. I told them I 

would see if I could run or somethin&, and I did, and I 
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lost and that was it. 

Q Is the City Council in Benavides a payinu job? 

A Not that I know of, sir. I don't know. 

VICE CHAIRMAN MALONEY: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks, do you 

6 have some •ore questions? 

i MR. HENDRICKS: Just one subject I would 

8 like to touch on, Mr. Chairman. 

9 BY MR. HENDRICKS 

10 

ll 

12 

Q 

A 

Q 

13 even iDS? 

14 A 

15 Q 

i6 A 

17 Q 

Mr. Chapa, you said you knew Cleofus Gonzalez. 

I know him. 

You were present has:e., when he testified last 

Last night? 

Yes, sir. 

Yes, sir, I was here. 

Rave yo·u ever in the past ever reported Judge 

18 Carrillo' a .mi~uslns county equipment or any kind of 

t9 aovernment equipment? 

20 A Yea, sir.. I $U8SS· Cleofus Gonzale c mentioned 

21 lt last ntaht. 

22 Were you with Cleofus Goazalezcat any time 

23 wheil he m•d• a report of the misuse of the equipment? 

24 Of the misuse of the equipment? I was there 
-

2s whea he called. 
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Q When was this? 

A It was last year in the grain season. You 

know, the grain season is--

Q In '74? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Whe~e did you go? Did you go with him some­

where? 

A No. We were there at his office. 

Q At Gonzalez' office? 

A Cleofus. Yes. And my office is in the same 

place. 

Q Aad your office. All right. What did you do? 

A We called the Highway Patrol. 

Q' Are you familiar with the Highway Patrolman 

thet:e ill Benavides? 

A -No. He ta n·ot from Benavides. He 1 s from 

, : 'r 

Q Do you kftow who you talked to? 

A I don't remember if it was Highway Patrolman 

Mora or who it was, or Al_la1a .. 

Q What d 1d you think his 'ttame w.as? 
' \ 

A Mora or Allala. I don't know what. I was the 

one that Gonzale:z called and then I got the phone and 

started talking too. 

Q You also talked to the Highway Patrolman? 

~-_______.,__----~_! 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q W4s the call long distance? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q It was a long distance call? 

A Yes, sir. It was a long distance. 

Q What did you tell the Highway Patrolman? 

A I told the ·Highway Patrol that there was a 

county truck, and I gave him the color and the model and 

everything, the license plate number. 

Q Did you know the license plate number? 

A , ! had seen it before. That's why. 

Q What was the license number? Do you remember 

it DOW? 

A No• I don't recall. But it's an International 

truck, a yellow one, and it's got an exempt license. 

An4 the trailer--the arain trailer it's got on it had 

juat a regular license plate, you know, like any other 

reaular license plate. So th•r• were some people, you 

know, farmers, that had been, you know, I had been. 

talklag to them. 

Q All right. Did anyone enter this ¢onversa­

tlon besides you aod Gonzalez? 

A Waa anybody else there? 

Q Yee. 

A No. Just him and I. 
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I 
Q But you do know it did take place? 

A Yes. 

MR. HENDRICKS: All right. Thank you. 

That•s all I have, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Kaster has another 

question. 

BY MR. KASTER 

Q Mr. Chapa, were you here last night when Mr. 

Gonzalee was testifying about the Farm and Ranch Store 

and the common knowledge that .Mr. Carrillo owned the Farm 

and Ranch Supply Company? 

A Was it co~on knowledge? 

Q Did you kcow who owned the store? 

A They did .. 

Q The Cerrillos? 

A o. P. and R. D. Carrillo. 

Q They o~ned the store? Did the people ln town 

know .they ot~n'd the etore? 

A I don·t know. 

Q You knew? 

A I knew because on the store l1cenee it was, 

you know, banging, and I bad--

Q What I am getting at, when you went to the 

store to pick up the cement that you were testifying to 

that was loaded onto the truck to go out to the ranch, 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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did you know that the Carrillos owned the store then? 

A Yes, sir. I knew they owned the store for 

five, six, seven years. 

Q So when they went and got cement they could 

have been very well hauling off cement that they owned, 

6 
i because you said you didn't kttow who was the county's and 

7 who use their~ own. Isn't that right? 

8 A I didn't say I didn't know what was the 

9 county's. I said o.n the vehicles; I didn't say about 

IO the cement. 

II Q I asked you earlier about the cement. or 
1 
I 

12 somebody did, and you said you didn't know if the cement I 

13 I 
You! 

I 
belons to t-he county or to the Farm and Ranch Store. 

14 dlda't know. I 

15 A ·I didn't know if it belonged to the county, but 

16 like I told fOU 0 hearsay. I heard that it belonged to 

17 tha couaty. Probably lQter on you can lnvGat1gate and 

18 oomebody mlght kaot7 thot tl\e couot7 bouaht it. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

You know they o~ned the store and-­

I know they owned the store. 

-and you got. cement from them. 

1 didn't. I ~as just looking. 

SomebOdJ ~-~ setting cement from them. 

Yes., sir. Somebody was getting cement. 

Of your Ol9D lmowledae you don't know if the 
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store owned it or the county owned it? 

A I think the store didn't own it because it 

was lots of sacks of cement and it's a large quantity of 
; 

sacks to b~ bought and a lot of money you're talking 

about. 

Q But you don't know if maybe the Farm and Ranch 

7 ~upply bousht so~e of the cement and the county bought 

s the rest of tbe car load? 

9 Prqbably they bought a car load and split it, 

to but how can you tell eben the sacks are there who used 

11 ~hat? I don't know. 

12 Q But you don't know. 

13 A !,don't know. Probably somebody can later on 

14 IU\)' that an employee of the county • if Jtbey: bring some-

15 

16 

body • they might say that r:ha eement be longed to_ the eouny. 
A I kao'tf wbst other people can say. but of your 

I7 OWD kaowledge you dOG' t really kDow. 

18 A Like I sc1d 0 I dtda•t see no inv-oice. I 

19 don't have no records or nothing. I said it a while ago. 

20 

21 

22 questioas? 

23 

24 aak some. 

25 

MR. KASTER: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN BALE: Are, there any further 

MS. THOMPSON: Yes, sir. I would like to 

CHAIRMAJJ HALE: Ms. Thompson 1 
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BY MS. THOMPSON 

Q ~r. Chapa, you indicated that you made a long 

distance call to the Highway Department to report the 

use of a truck to haul grain. 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q What month was that in? 

A I told you it was in grain season. I can't 

recall the month but I can ask Mr. Gonzale~ probably 

and we'll check later on. It was made from his office. 

Q Waa it made on the county telephone? 

A No.· It was made from the Benavides Implement 

pboae. It was not a county phone. 

Q Who now? 

Benavides Implement. It was a phoDe that 

15 beloDgo to Benevides Implement. 

16 

17 . 

18 . 

19 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Oh 1 "Imple~<ant." Beaevides Implemeo.t. 

Benavides Implement. 

ls that ·a city owaed telephone! 

tt belongs to the owner of· the stcn:e. He has 

20 it tbero for his buo1Dess. 

21 Q 

23 A 

24 Q 

2s telephone? 

But you don't know whether or not the county 

Was the loag d1GtQnce call charged on that 
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A Cha~ged to that number. Yes, ma 1am. 

MS. THOMPSON: Thank you. 

A You're welcome. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there any further 

questions? 

Mr. Slack has one. 

BY Mlt. SLACK 

Q Had your replacement been selected before--you 

14 84.1)' thera are t"o aohoo 1 boards? 

15 A Yes, sir. 

16 Q Aad hove all of you--oRe elected and one 

17 appolntod! Is thai: it? 
, 

18 A Well. there's been four or five appointed by 

19 Dlstrlct Judge 0. P. Carrillo and Hilda-- Mrs. Adlai Parr 

20 and myself have been elected. We're tha only ones that 

21 have been elected right now. 

22 And·you have not been removed by court order 

23 and a replacement salected for you? 

24 A Not yet. 

25 MI. SLACK: All right. Thank you. 
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CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney? 

BY MR. MALONEY 

Q Did you say that you made the phone call to 

the HighwAy Patrol on the Benavides Implement telephone? 

A Yes, sit:. 

Q Who owns the Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

A R. M. Coulina. 

Q R. M. Couling? 

A Yes • sir. 

Q And you were in the company of Cleofus Gonzalez 

at that time? 

A W~ were there at the same pla,ce. 

Q Why were you there? 

A Because my office is in there also. He's got 

o storo there and he rents this office to the Water 

District, but'lt 1 s in the back. My office is in the 

beek~~ And ho'e aot hls dook llD.d everythin& and office 

aad ever:ythilll there at one side also. So the pbone 

tJSS arouad there. so we grQbbed that phone. 

Q 

Coapaay 

A 

Q 

A 

paper, 

Does the Benavides Implement and Hardware 

carry any inventory? 

Yeo. 

What 

Oh., 

palt\t. 

air. 

do they carry? 

lots of things: pl.pe, paper towels, 

HI.CKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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-~ I 

Q t;ement? 

A Cement. Horse and mule--you call it, they 

might have it there. 

Q Do you keep any of the equipment or the 

s r supplies for the Reclamation District there 9n those 
1 

6 premises 1 

7 A Inside the building? 

8 Q · · l-lell, on the premises or inside the building, 

9 A Okay. Inside the building. with the office, 

10 th<are is a space leased-you know • there is a piece 

11 leased to that office where we keep the machine that is 

12 for the sewer lines. And like it's an expensive. 

13 machta.o so we keep it inside, you know, so it won't get 

14 rusted or anything. We clean it up and we store it in 

15 there. 

16 Q Any other equipment? 

A Janitor supplies that we have and everything 

1s for our j aaitor. 

19 Q Does the Benavides Implement and Hardware 

20 Com.pal\y do any vork for the county or sell anything to 

21 the county or tbe school district or any governmental 

22 agency? 

23 A ·no tney sell to the county or anybody? 

Q Uh huh. 

25 They sell to the Water District and to the 

county, I ~css 0 ·or to the school; whuever it is. 
~'·'' 
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Q Do you do any work for them whatsoever? 

A F·or who? 

Q Do you do any work for the Benavides Implement 

Hardware Company? 

A 

Q 

you 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

No. sir. 

Have you ever been paid by them for anything 

have ever done? 

By the Benavides Implement? 

Yes. 

No, sir. 

Is Mr. Coulina the only owner of that? 

1 think he is. 

I~ he a friend of Mr. Parr's? 

I guess. 

MR. MALONEY: Tba t' s all. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are tbere any further 

11 questions of Mr. Chapa? 

1s BY Ml. CHAVBZ 

19 

.w 

21 

Q In connection with this political split we 

tolltecJ about a while ago. when you split off from Judge 

Carrillo •a party, where "en the Zertuche brothers? On 

22 which side? 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

WheQ. I split? 

Yes. 

W$11 0 the Zertuche brothers don't live there in I 
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Benavides oo more. One of them is in Laredo, the other 

one is in--1tell• eventually Arturo tJas teaching in-

Q .In Harlingen? 

A No. I don't know if he was in Harlingen or 

if he was in Freer at that time. And Hector, he is in 

Welfare. he works for the Welfare Department. He lives 

!n Alice. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

All toaother. You and Coullng and-

A~td Cel'clllos ao4 Zertucb.ee and everybody. 

GoRzalez 'l. 

Evel:'ybody. It was a party. 

Parra? 

Yes, sir. 

And tbta Parrs too? All toge·t~er? 

Yos, sir. 

Then. of course, there was this split and aow 

. ' 
' 

Goatu\lez and Couling and you arta on the same side and the I 
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Por't:s are on the same side? 

A . You c~n ,ay we're o·n the same side. 

Q All of these people that neve been removed 

are also on what ~e might call your side? / 

A Yes, sir. 

MR. CHAVEZ: Okay. That's all. Thank 

you. I 
t 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there further questiont'l 

BY Ma. LANEY 

Q l{r. Chapa, was it common knowledge, or would 

the public have known about this county equipment being 

used by the Judge? I mean did you all have a coffee 

shop or a bar or·rrta)'thlns you go to and talk about 

tbiags? 

A You don't have to go to a bar. You bear it 

tlll around tow. 

Q Was it common knowledJe around towa that the 

Judge wae uslna this equipmeQt for his own uae? 

A tt • s been there in town. ··You' 11 hear it 

around tmgD. You kno" it. 

q Did it seem that most people would say, you 

hno~0 "That's flee," or did people talk about that he 

In other words, did they approve 

I~ 
I 
l 

sbot.&l.dn•t be doing it? 

of it? 

u.___ ____ ______.:.__j 
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A I don't think the people would S#JY "Fine," you 

know. Like I said, there were a lot of people that 

would like to use that equipment and have personnel from 

the county ln thQlr houses. I would like t~ have it 

too, if I could. 

Q So they didn't really •pprove of it. Nobody 

said anything about it except to each other? 

A 

Q 

A 

Well 11 what could they say? 

Just talk about it ~o each other? 

·Just talk about it to each other. 

MR. LANEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

CUllMAN HALE: Are there further 

quootioaa? 

MR. MALONEY: One short one. 

CBiaiiMAN HALE a Mr. Maloney hes another 

question. 

BY MB.. IMLORBY 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

A 

Wbcu:e 4o you b&nk, Mr. Chapa 'l 

The Bank of South TeHaa in Allee. 

Do you have a checking account there? 

Yes, sir. 

DC) you hove a savin;:a account there? 

No. Just cheeking. 

What was the natne of that bank? 

Baak of South Texas. 
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MR. MALONEY: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: 
I 

Any further questions? 

~(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, do you have 

an"tbing furtper of this witness? 
' 

MR. CANALES: No, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Tharak you very much. 

A The.ltk,you, ladies and gentlemen. 

CHAIRMAM HALE: We appreciate your 

atteudan.ce. 

(The witness, Mr. Ruben Chapa, was 

eucused.) 

, CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales. do you want 

to call your next witness? 

Mr. Mitchell, do you "tJCI'lt to submit any 

quost!oas for this witness? 

MR.. MITCHELL: Mr. Chairman, may I state 

to the Committee that I'm not prepared to. And may I 

otate to tbe Committee ~hy I'm aot prepared? 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: 1 1m not prepared because 

I have not received any Bill of Particularo other than 

that coatataed in BSR No. 161, aor have I received any 

Bill of Particulars applying to any misappropriation of 

25 county fuade or the 111lsuse of county property. I have 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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10 
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13 

14 

had no adva.nc~ notice of the witness, Mr. Chairman 11 or 

tbe subject matter to be covered. Conoequently, I 

don't knoa whethsr I can intelligently submit questions. 

In Gddition, I hove not gono beyond the date 

of November 22nd, '74, which 1s the date of the 

Certificate of Election of Mr. Carrillo. 

I do have some questions, and with that 

b&ckaround I would like to put them to the witness 

tturouib wbatever veb1ele the Committee sees fit. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Do you wish to do that 

MR. MITCHELL: May I? 

CHAIRMAN HAL!: Yes, you .may. 

MR. MITCHELL: Aad could the Chairaan 

1s bluep-rint for 111e the procedure that I •m to use! 

16 CHAIRMAN HALE: Well 0 normally--this ta 

17 t.be flret orae of these. committees that 1 've ever been 

za neo.,oieted with l.ravolvlng tmpeaehment. Mr. M1tehe11 and 

19 we '·~• all-

20 MR. MITCHELL: It's mine too. 

21 CHAIRMAN HALE: -feeling our way 

22 prc:toedurevt.ae. Lot the Chair state that you had as much 

23 adveo.ce aot~ae about what this wl.tncasa would testify to 

24 as mll the mGmbcars of the Oommitte0 did. Noae of us 

25 kae~ wbat hQ ~~• aoiag to testify to until ha took the 
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oath and started talking, with the possible exception of 

Mr. Canales, who is not a member of the Committee. 

I vould say that this is more or less a grand 

jury type of proceeding and, as you are well aware, it is 

Dot adversary in nature. 

MR. MITCHELL: I understand. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: And for that reason we 

have ao~mally nev•r permitted cross examination on 

9 1avestigative ~ommittees. In this type of proceeding, I 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

diaouesed it with members of the Committee and we felt 

ta fairness to you and your client that possibly we might 

pe~•lt you to ask some questions i~ it would tend to 

brina out materl.al ·.evidence to this inquiry. We would 

hope that you would not attempt to abuse that privilege 

by uaneteessQrtly prolonging and going into aft extensiV"e 

erose exam:l.raattoa as you wo~ld do if thts tsere a trial. 
< . 

Tbls is not a t~iel. You underst~u.td that? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yea. I understand, Mr. 

ChoirmaD •. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: With that admonition. 

eupposlo.g you juat ask vhatever questions you havGt and 

I '11 ask the vtt.a•ss if he '11 take the staod again. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I would like 

24 to msko a sugaestf.oa. The members that are present here 

I 
I 

I 
i 
I 

I 
I 

15 or tha ·td.ta.oeoes that are present here are under 

1...1.----_____..;..__-----·J 
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6 

7 

8 

9 

subpoena, and the Committee is entitled to keep them 

here until such time f!B--well 1 they are here at the 

Comm!ttoe's leisuro. The only ones that can lift the 
' l 

subpoona fro' t~em would be the Committee itself. 

If it would be agreeable with the Committee, I 

would prefer to p~eoent my case in its entirety and if 

Mr. Mttcbe~l would like to ask them questions I would 

tbink it would then fall itlto the system that we had 

originally discus$ed, where I wculd present my 

10 uttnesses and thea he would preaeat his. He is perfectly 

11 willins or able to call these people as his own 

12 witnesses. They will be here at such time as he wants 

13 to cell them. They are under subpoena •. 

i 
; 

l 
i 

I 

1 

I 
14 

15 

satisfactory~ CHAIRMAN HALE : Would that be 

Mr. Mitchell? 

16 

l7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

MR. MITCHELL: Whatever the pleasure of 

the Committee 1o 0 certainly. Aad may I state, Mr. 

Cho:l.run, so thct my previous statemeat doesn•t appear 

to be a nora sequitur, when I oteted I did not have 

aot!ce, I dida' t mean, of course, an advance notice of 

~hat the qu~at1one put to the aitnema would be, or the 

!,ttnoss'a Q&U1wer. The fact is that HSR No. 161 states 

23 otmply that Mt:. Carrillo has. been indicted by a Qraad 

24 J,ury of the UQltod States of America on multiple counts 
~ 

25 for violetioao of Federal Iacome tax Law, and it's most 
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difficult for me to anticipate what the alleged use of a 

backhoe has to do with the indictment by a Federal Grand 

Jury of Mr. Carrillo. That's my p1z:ooblem, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Mitchell, of course, 

you undorstllnd, ap any Grand Jury, once a Grand Jury 

has a complaint &nd starts an interrogation it has 

pleaary power to go into whatever f:ields of misconduct 

are developed b4!fore the Grand Jury, and this Committee 

ls in that same position. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

CHAII.MAN HALE: we don't know where the 
I 

tostimoay will lead any more than you do. I 

I waa aware of that and I I lG. MITCHELL: 

t~eo conscaqueatly faced with c proviuf.on from Article 

So.ction 7 of Special Committees 0 wh~lcb are governed, 

I 
5429 ~f) 

of I 
couroe 6 by the Resolutions creating 4ucb committee, and 

bound by ucl 1f.mi.ted to the vete~•a.ao f.n tbe Resolution. 

Coaoequently. I'm hard-put 1 if tt please the Chairman, 

to det•rmtne precisely how ~ar afield these witnesses 

are going to go. Thts f.s where I'm haviag my problem .. 

I am afraid I can't shed any light or assist the 

Coemlttae. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I think I 

c&n abed some light on it if the Chair wlll permit. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Chairman is not going 
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2-110 ----- ------·----·---: 

to allow the testimony to go any further afield than is 

necossary to develop whatever facts there may be con-

cerniag any possible misconduct. I think I called to 

your attention I believe the Articles 5961--

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. On the removal. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: --and the other Articles 

uader Title 100 of the Vernon's Annotated Civil 

Statutes, M~. Mitchell, with which I'm sure you have 

since read. ·And if yDu read Article 5962 that the 

''House. at the time it undertakes that investigation," 

why, it has pretty rauch plenary po,wer to pursue whatever 

12 11aes of fact are developed before the Committee. And 

13 that certainly hoe been true in the two impeachment 

r4 ctUJCU'l that :have been before the LelJiS lature in the last 

15 half cGatury. 

16 MI. .• CANALES: Mr. Chairman, with your 

18 CHAIRMAN HALE : Mr • Ca.ule s? 

19 MR. CANALES: In dealing with violations 

2o of the Internal Revenue, Mr. Cbatn1an, Mr. Mitchell, the 

21 IDternJ.ll ltGJVenue Code provides thai: all income from 

22 whatevor source it is derive~ be t.t monetary or 

23 services ~endored or whatever, it 1Si supposed to be 

24 reported mad recogDlzed as lncomo. I believe the 

25 tcast1mony that these people &J:'e presentina reflects 
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services received or benefits recei·\Ted, and consequently 

would fall within the purview even if that were a 

limitation on the particular resolution at hand. 

Tho resolution itself is couched in very 

broad language and the terms of it are merely that a 

committee should investigate impeachment against Judge 

0. P. Carrillo. And the fact that .ius t one charge 

tJas made in the resolution I don't think would limit the 

scope of the investigation itself. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Tbe Chair certainly 

11 doesn't tbink that this Committee :La limited by the 

12 terms of the resolution, Mr. Mitchell. 

13 MR.. MITCHELL: All r:lght. 

14 CHAIRMAN HALE: Once the Committee has 
' 

t5 convened under &n impeachment resolution 1t 1s the 

16 opinion of the Ch41r that we have authority to go into 

17 coy £ll'6Ul that mf.aht be the subject C)f misconduct. 

18 MB.. MITCHELL: I have gathered that. Mr. 

19 Ghal.naan~ but I uan.ced to uke that observation. 

20 CHAIRMAN HALE: Tbe (:bair &ees the 

21 reaponslb111ty of this Committee to do two things. One, 

22 to 4evolop all facts pert1Euant to the conduct of the 

23 office of the Judge of the 229th JucU.cial District, and 

24 if tboso foets wsrraDt, it•s the ta11k of this Committee 

25 to dga~ the speciftcatione and reco~wend them to the 
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House of -.epresentatives which would in effect be the 

2 j\ Grand Jury in this case. 

3 :~. I , MR. MITCHELL: And may I make one more 
j 1 

4 \ ·1 observation and then I' 11 sit down. This is not-Judge 

s I! Carrillo 1a not charged with evasion, under 7202. He is 

6 jl charged with, under 7206, simply impeding or impairing 

7 or obstructing the Treasury Department in computing or 

s aasessina the tax. Consequently, Mr. Can4les' 

9 

10 

11 

obse:rvettoa as resards the value confe.rred by the use of 

coucty equipmcuat Wf!uld not be releval\t to that 7206 

charg•, Mr. Ch41rman-

I 

i 

12 Cl!AliiMAII l!ALE : We 11, w1 t.h . 1C!ur perm is lit on J 
13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Mr. Mitchell, t.be Chair feels it: might be bette~ if we I 
. I 

pursue our original line of inquiry here; that Mr. i 
I 

Canales--we will permit him to present whatever evidence 

be baa for tbe eoasideratlon of tho Committee that ln 

thea opinion of the Committee f.'G pertf.aent to this 

tnqui¥Yo oad fo1ln!~& 11h1ch, ae the Chatr haa told you 

on mot:e thllB oa.e occasion, we would welcome any or a 

similar p~escaatation on your port on behalf of your 

clieat. 

Ma • MITCHELL: Thaak JOU. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Aad at that time the 

24 subpoea.a pOWGr of this Committee will be available to 

zs you and your cl1eat in whateve~ capacity you aeed it. 
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MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Then I'll put Mr. Chapa on 

notice that I will 

want htm back some time next week for some cross 

examination. 

CHAIRMAN HALE·: That will be fine. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: We will h.ave him here. 

Hr. Canales, would you present your aext 

td.toeas. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Francisco Ruiz. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, do you want 

to make any prel~tnary statement about this witness? I 
of I Ma. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, and members 

the Committee, Mr. Francisco Ru1z in previous times, I 

don't know if up to this date, but I'm sure he'll 

cl&%lfy 1t to your liking, was employed by the county 

end will testify that he Wf1:8 laatr:ucted by, lf not o. P. 

I 
I 

Carrillo, hia brother, a. D., to work on o. P.'s ranch, 

and be will t•atify to thea use a.nd poaa1bly-I get him and I 
Mr. Sanch<a.z' conf1.1eed as to their teatimony--wf.ll testifyj 

, . . I 
to uaina county equipment whlch uas put at their dis- i . . I 
possl by o. p, Carrillo. 

CHAIRMAM HALE: Tbtlt'a fiDe. 

MJ:, ltu1a • it 1.8 my duty as Chairman to advise I 
you of your rights ~ltb reference to your testimony. Youl 
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2-114 

will be sworn to tell the truth and your failure to do 

so can subject you to a prosecution for perjury. 

After you bave completed your statement, members of the 

Committee may ask questions concarning your testimony. 

You must answer these quasti~ns truthfully and your 

refusal to do so could subject fOU to punishment for 

coatempt. You can .refuae to answer questions only on 

the ground that auch aaawers might incriminate you or 

tend to incri~inate you in some way. 

You ere privileged to have an attorney of your 

seleotton eit with and advise you as to your answers if 

you d•stre. The Chair will attempt to protect your 

rlabts at all tlmea. 

Do you uaderstant\ tho advice t have given you? 

MR. RUIZ: Yes, etr. 

CB.AilUIAR' HALB: Are you ready to t"sttfy? 

t:m. RUXZ: Yea, slr. 

CHAIBMAI HALE: Will you pleas.e s taad and 

retce JOur J"laht hand. 

(The 't1f.tness was sworn at this time by 

the Cha1req .• ) 

CHAXBMAlf HALE: YCIU may be seated. 
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Ruiz - direct 2-115 

MR. FRANCISCO RUIZ 

W&$ called as a witness by the Author and, having 'been 

duly sworn, testified as follows: 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Please state your name 

and address if you will, please, for the record. 

A My name is Francisco Ruiz, Box 365, Benavides, 

1 Texas. 

8 CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. You may proceed 

9 with any statement )'cits have or, Mr. Canales, you may 

10 pursue a question and answer, as you wish. 

l I MR. CANALES: Tbaftk you, Mr .. Chairman. 

12 

13 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

t4 BY MR. CANALES 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Q 

A 

Q 

' 

Mr •. R~iz, you live in Benavides, you say? 

Yes, sf.r. 

Would you tell me ~ho you are presently 

employed by? 

A By the Duval water District. 

Q Who vere you employed by previous to being 

21 employed by the Water Distrlct? 

22 A Duval County. 

23 Q Mr. Ruts. did you on any oeeasion work on a 

24 raach belonalns to Mr. o. P. Carrillo? 

25 I 

~--------------~-------J 
A Yea, at:r:. 
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Ruiz - direct 2-116 -·-----------··· 

Q W~re you in the employ of the county at that 

time? 

A Yea, sir. 

Q Who instructed you, Mr. Ruiz, to go out a.nd 

work on Judge o. P. Carrillo's ranch when you were 

workiag foz the county? 

A Sometimes his brother, sometimes he would 

COfAe over and tell me to go ~o his ranch and work on his 

tractors. 

Q Did you thlnk at this time that if you didn't 

comply with his request that you would be fired? 

A I tbf.llk so • 

Q Mr. luis, w&e this onone occasion, two 

occasioaa, or was 1.t relatively frequent that yott were 

atlted to go out Q.Qd work on Judge o. P. Carrillo's 

!:mtch? 

A Well, 1t was many tf.uuaa. 

Q' Atad all this time you wore in the employ of 

the county! 

A Yea, elr. 

Q D14 Judge o. P. Carrillo ever pay you for the 

l•bo~ you perfo~ed on his ranch? 

A If~, etr• 

Q Dtd B.. D, Carrillo personally pay you for ahy. 

~o~h tbGt you ~ere dole& out tha~c on that ranch? 
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A No, slx. 

Q Mr. Ruiz, d1d you ever see any county vehicl s 

bQing used on Judse o. P. Carrillo's ranch? 

A !GB, air. I was driving one. 

Q Who brought you that truck, or did you pick 

up at the county yard, or how did you acquire it? 

A I ~as working there. I had used that truck 

every time • 

Q The truck was kept the~e at the ranch? 

A Sllr? 

Q Th& truck waa kept at·tha ranch? 
i 

' 

A· Oh DO •· Ito. I was dr,Vi!JI the truck. 0 
I 

Wbeaeve~ 

he callod mca.or Mr. llaairo Ccrr111o aent sae I would 

drive tbnt c~nty truck to the ranch. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

q 

Whe~e did you pick up the truck? 

RlCht there at the county shop. 

What did you do with the truck? 

I would drive it and pull Q trailer type 

And you did ~eldtag work. then? 

abo did the weldin& machioe belong to? 

To th• county. 

What other type of work did you do, Mr. Ruiz, 

I 
I 
! 
i 
I 
I 

I 

2s oa Judae o. f. Carrillo's ranch? 
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Rulz - direct 2-118 ·-··--------·-·-l 

Just w~ld1ag. That's all. 

Did you over get paid by Judge o. P. Carrillo? 

No, sir. 

Never? 

(The ~1tness shook his head.) 

Do you remember seei~g any other county 

7 equipment betng used on Judge 0. P. Carrillo's ranch 

s besides the truck that you used and the welding machine? 

9 

10 

II 

12 

Q 

A 

Rot that I caa recall of. 

Just those tuot 

Just those two. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I have no 

13 further questions of this ~ltneas. 

14 CliA IRMAN HALE : Thank you. 

IS . 

·16 QUESTIONS BY THE COMMITTEE 

11 BY CRAlltf.AN HALE 

18 Q Ar4 you omployed by D~val County? 

19 A Not proacntly. I was employed by Duval County. 

20 Wo~ I am employod by the Duval County Wator District. 

21 

23 

24 

2S 

Q H~ long have you been with the WatQr District? 

A Ab.out ~:a y•ar • 

Q low much are you paid by the Water District? 

A $700. 

Q $700'1 

l..I----~~-;::-----J HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Jluiz - direct 

1 ~A Yea, alr. 

' Jl Q P•r month? 
, I I, 

3 l A lea, slrr I'm a welder. 
I 

2-119 

4 I Q Did you work for Duval County prior to going to 
I I . I 

5 j j work for the Water District? 

6 11 A Yes, sir. 

8 

10 

ll 

12 

Q As a welder? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes. sir. 

How auch were you paid by the county? 

Three twenty twenty~ttvo. 

When wet:e you first .!!lent out to do work on the 

carr111o rauh? 

I 

I 
I 

I 
13 Whenever I started working for Ramiro 

I 
Carrillo, I 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

. 23 

24 

25 

o. P. Carrillo. 

Q 

Dlstrlet? 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

was this while you were employed by the Water 

No, co. 

Wh11e you wore employed by the county? 

By the county. 

Bow lons dtd you work for the county? 

Since 1968 or '69 until the middle of 1974. 

Was it duriag this period of time that you 

uere seot out to do ~ork on the Ca%ri11o ranch? 

Yes, air. 

I 

Q What 1a the lllteat tl11e 70u were sent to do work 

LJ___ ______ j 
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Jluiz - direct ---, 

on the Ca~rillo ranch? 

A It was some· time between January and June of 

1974. 

Q All of the work that you did out there was 

welding work? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Did you always use county equipment? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Did you ever see any other welding equipment 

on the Carrillo ranch? 

No. Mot while I was out there. 

Q What sort of welding work did you do on the 

CarJ:illo raach? 

A I ttorked on the root rakes acd the root plow 

ead tho caterpillars, tractors. 

Q -And the only comper:uaation you ever received 

for that w•s your salary thot you rec-eived from Duval 

Couttty? 

A tea, uta:. 

Q Is th•t correct? 

A (The ~ttttess nodded.) 

Q Did you evor receive any other benefits from 

i 

j 

23 tbe Cat:~lllo ranch? 

24 

25 

u_ _____ Q ____ '_o_od~?---------------------------------__j 
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fl 
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I I 
II 
' 

A Food. 

Q Gasoline? 

A No. 

Q CQeb? 

A (The witness shook his head.) 

Q Were you ever given any cash? 

A Rever. 

Q Did you ever have any employment relationship 

witb the P':n.-. and Ranch Sto-re? 

A lo. 

. Q Or the Zert~che Genera~ Store? 

A No. 

Q Ha•e you ever been in either of those places 

of businese 'l 

A I have beeft ln the Farm and Ranch 0 but I 

d oa' t know-

Q Have you ever boen ln the Zertuche General 

St:Het 

A mo. 
Q Where is lt located? 

A I doD't know. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you. 

Mr. Moloney? 

I 
I 
) 

I 
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Ruiz 2-122 
--------·----------~ 

BY MR. MALONEY 

Q Mr. Ruiz, you were making $325 a month when--

A That's take-home pay. Take-home pay. 

Q I bog your pardon? 

A Take-home pay. 

Q Take~home pay? 

A Yoe, sir. After deductions for social security 

and-

Q How much was your gross salary? 

A $375, I guess. 

Q When did you cease receiving that? When dld 

12 you atop recelviAg $375 a month? 

13 When I quit working with the county. 

14 Q Take a guess. Would that have been about 

15 Ap~11 lat of 1974? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

county? 

Q 

A 

Q 

District? 

A 

Q 

No. It waa in Ju~~ or July. 

What were your duties ae a welder with the 

Repair county equipment. 

Did you repair county equipment? 

Yes, sir. 

What aro your dutias with the Reclamation 

I repair their equi~ent. 

About the same type of work? 
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Ruiz 2-123 --- ·--------------, 

A Yes. sir. 

Q What is it you do that now makes you worth 

$700 a month? 

A Will you repeat that again? 

Q You're now making $700 a month. Is that 

correct. 

A Yes, sir. 

Q What do you do now that you didn't do before? 

A Notbias. Just welding. That's all. 

Q Where do you go to work in the morning? 

Wh•re do you report? 

A To the Water District Shop. 

Q Where ta that? 

A Right there in town. Benavides. 

q· Benavides Implttmeat and Hardware Company? 

A On the ba~k; th<u:e 's another shop. 

Q Who works with you there? 

A There are tt.bout eight or a.1ae workcn:s • 

Q All of you there? 

Q On the pJreJilises? 

A Yes,. sir. 

Q Do you ever work for the Benavides Imp'lement 

e. ltd Hardware Company_? 

A Mo, s1~:. 
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Ruiz __ ___2.::.12.4 

Q Do any of the Reclamation District employees 

work for them? 

A Rot that I know of. 

Q Ho" many people do they have there working 

for them? 

A Where? 

Q At the Benavides Implement and Hardware 

COtapaay? 

A I oaa~ I guees. 
I 

Q Ie tbat a very large placer-

A Pretty good elze. 

Q They juot have one employee? 

A Yes. 

Q And there are eight or nftne people there of 

the, l\ec,,l.,amatlon District? 
;. ·,·~; . . ,_.,, 

A Yes. 

Q Ro" did you come to chaaso your job from 

uor1d.ag for Duval County and stt.trt wo.rktng for the 

aocl~•otlon District? 

A I asked for the job and I knew I would get more 

moncay. 

Q Who did you ask for the job? 

A The Board members. 

Q Who was ttukt. in particular? 

..... l 

I 
I 
i 

A Ceb Raymond and Mr. Canales and Mr. Perez, 
and J 
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2-125 

there•s another member; I've forgott~n his name. 

Q Had someone quit or did you just: nted a job? 

A I needed a job. 

Q At ·the time· you applied for tbe Job were you 

still vorlting for tbe Duval County? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q You weren't laid off then? 
, 

A No, sir. 

Q Or anything like that? 

A No, sir. 
.. ,_ -- . -- -- . 

Q Do you do any other work other than working 

for the Reclamation District? 

A No, air. 

Q Do you do anythi.q on anybody. else's ranch 

1s cow? 

16 A 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 BY MR. 

22 Q 

23 you out 

le. Except my o~. 

MR. MALONEY: That's all that I have. 

CBAIB.MAif HALE: Mr. Slack? 

MR. SLACK: ·I have ao questloas. 

CRA IRMA If HALE: Mr. Hendricks? 

BEHDlllCltS 

ev~ Ml'. lluiz 0 did Judse Carrillo himself 

to hta reach or instruct you to go out there? 

Yea. sir. Be would come aad say, "Will yo 

2s so?" lie ttouldn 't use aDy force or anythf.ns. 
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Q I got f~om your testimony previous th.a.t two 

of him brothers were the ones telling you you had to gO: 

out t:hore. Did the Judge himself tell you you had to go 

out there? 

A He told me quite a few times. 

Q And he never paid you anything? 

A Mo, a1r. 

-·· I 
' i 
! 

I 

i 

Q Did he hold any position with the county 

sovernOleD~ that issued you your check, your mosathly 

check? He wasn't a commisoionor or wasn't the county, 

he? 
~·j 

A Be asked permlaelon of the County ~udge. 

Q Who did you uork tor, what eomm1ss1one:r? 

A Mr. Ramlro Ccrr111o. 

Q His brothe~? 

A Yel, str. 

Q Have you ever bought food wlth those county 

cheeks, or go up and got food ou county checks? 

A No, sir. 

q WarrAnts? 

A mo, air. 

Q Hove you eve~ had a ~ounty check that wa•n't 

made out to you that you cashed at the Farm and Ranch 

Store? 

A No. 
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Q Have you ever bought county equipment for the 

p~ecinct 't the Farm and Ranch Store? 

A No. 

Q Have you ever bought equipment at the Farm and 

Ranch Store for Judge Carrillo? 

A No, sir. 

MR. HENDRICKS: I believe that's all I 

have .. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Nabers? 

BY IG. NABERS: 

Q Did you ever see any bulldozers out on Judge ' 

Carr11lo's ranch? 

A Yea,sir. 

Q Do you know who they bolons.ed to? 

A lfo, sir. 

q< . Have you ever seen a backhoe from the Water 

Dietl.'lct? 

A Wo. 

Q Do you all own. a backhoe? noes the Water 

District have a backhoo? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Have ·you ever seen it out on .Judg.e.Carrillo's 

ranch? 

A Not me. 

What? Q 

I..J.---_____ j 
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A Not me. 

Q I'm kind of curious, Mr. Ruiz. why would you 

go to the ranch and do work out there on the county 

equipment? I assume that is what you were working on 

out at the ranch is welding on county equipment? Is 

that .right? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Not on county equipment. 

What were you welding on out there? 

On his tractors. 

Okay. Farm tractors? 

No. Bulldoaers. 

Q Bulldozer tractors? 

A Right. 

Q But you don't know whose they uere? 

A No, slr. 

i 

l 

I 

Q Why would you go out thcar:e, I •m curious t:o know I 
t1hy you would ao out there and wo.rk on those tracox·s? 

A We11 0 1 was afraid I t:Ould get fired or 

something. 

Q Why would you feel that? Judge Carrillo 

couldn't fire you. 

No. But hla brother would. 

Q Okay. So maybe his brother said, '~ou go out 

there aod work on Judge Carrillo's ranch." Is that 
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A He told me a few times • 

Q But you're also saying that Judge Carrlll.o 

told you to go? 

A Yea, sir. 

Q Can you remember any specific times? 

A No. 

MR. NABERS: That's all. 

CHAIRMAN' HALE: ~r. Kaster? 

BY Mil. KASlER 

Q Mr. Ruiz. since you have been working for the 

Water Df.strict 0 heve you seen tha~ backhoe used 
' ~· 

on othet 

people's property or on other jobs other than just the 

Water District jobs? 

A. No. 

Q In the year sit'lce you've been there it's only 

baeD used ira the town there? 

A .Just oa the jobo, on the Water District. 

Q t1b.en you wore work:l.ns for the couftty did you 

ever 10 to anybody •lse's raaches and weld their 

equipment? 

weald. 

A Ho. 

Q The oaly taach you ever went to and welded--

A I uoed to so to the COuullissloner•s raneh.arad 

Q Anybody eloe•e ranch in the entire county? 
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A Mo. 

Q Do you know if the county ever had any 

equipment that was used on anybody else 1 s ranch other 

than just the Commissioner's or Judge Carrillo's? 

A No. 

Q You mean there was never any road graders 

used or equip~nt used--

A Yes. 

Q There was? Did:~hey grade roads on guys' 

ranches? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Did tbQae ever break down and you would go ou~ 

and weld them? 

A Yes, air. 

Q So you did weld on other people's places? 

A Yea. sir. 

Q Thtllt vee county equtpment? 

A Yes. eir. 

Q And they were doing sotne kind of work out 

the:re and it 1fOU1d'break and they would call you to 

21 come weld it• or how did that work? How did you know to: 

22 go out and weld it? Did somebod1 tell you to go out 

23 and fix the equipment? 

24 A Sure. 

25 Q And you would go wherever they told you. You I 
I 

U-----------------------------------------------~J 
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would just go ahead and weld it? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q So you went on places other than Judge 

Carrillo's to weld equipment? 

A Like I say, on the Commissioner's ranch. 

Q Just the Commissioner's ranch. or other 

people's ranches? 

A No, not othe~ people. No. 

Q Well, I'm confused then because I thought you: 
I 

just got through saying that there was equipment used 

building roads or doing something on other people's 

places and if they broke down you had to go weld it. 

A They don't brea~ very often, you know, not 

all the time. They go close to somebody place and 

they don't break. I have seen them in other placesa 

Q The road graders and stuff? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Were the road graders ever used at the 

Carrillo's ranch? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And it was used at other people's ranches too? 

A Not on other people's. 

Q The road grader was not ever used on anybody 

else's ranch? 

A No. 
' i 
I 

I 
_______ j 
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MR. KAStER: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Donaldson? 

BY MR. DOHALDSON 

Q About Benavides Hardware, are you familiar 

A Benavides Hardware? Yes, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Have you been in there often?: 

Yea, air. 

What do they sell? 

Rard-ouare. 

What kind of hardware? 

Barbed wire, 'J:(!pes, wire cutters, bolt cutters~ 

n bolts. 

14 

1 5 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

20 butldias. 

2l Q 

22 materials 

23 A 

24 Q 

15 A 

Is it a big store? 

te•. Bigger than this. 

Btaser than this room? 

About tho alze of thia building. 

Where is th$ Water Reclamation office? 

liaht on the back, in an office in that 

Does the Water Reclamation District ha"e 

and supplies and everything stored there? 

Just the janitor cupplies. 

Just the janitor supplies? 

Yes. sir. 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Where do you get your welding materials? 

From Crane Welding Supplies. 

Do you buy those yourself? 

Yes, sir. And I sign a ticket. 

You sign a ticket to the Water District? 

Yes, sir. 

Q But it's your testimony that Benavides Hardwa~e 

Supply has a big tcventory of hardware, barbed wire, 

ropes and th4t kind of thing? 

A Yes. 

Q Do they sell cement? 

A No, sir. 

Q Do they sell stuff to the county? 

A I don't know. 

Q Do they sell stuff to the Water District? 

A Yes. 

CHAIRMAN HALE : Mr. Laney? 

BY MR. LANEY 

Q Where did you say you bought your welding 

supplies when you worked for the county? 

A Crane Welding Supplies. 

Q Did you buy those supplies yourself? r mean 

did you sign a ticket for the county? 

A For the Water District. I worked for the 

Water District. 
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Q For the Water District. 
I 

Yes, now, but I mean i 
I 

when you worked for the county, and you W$lded for the 

coul.'lt1, t:ight! ·You -were a···welder for the county? 

A When 1 ~orked for the county I · never signed 

a bill for the welding mateT1al. 

Q WherG did you get your welding rods and 

tblcas like that? 

A I got them from Crane, but Mr. Cleofus 

Coaaalez was the on•>that signed the tickets. 

Q He staaed the tickets for you? 

A Yea. 

Q Is tbia in th« same town 1 this Crane Welding 

Supply? 

A Oht no. It's from Alice. 

Q ft4e .mtldiaaJ.su.pply firm. did they deliver 

you acetyleae and oxyson -~~ stuff? 

Q Aad they delivered it to you there in 

Bcaaavtdea? 

A Y~us. 

Q Did you use this material, the acetylene and 

weldirag rods azut stuff lUte that, did you use this on 

tbe J•dse'a reach? 

A Y<lle• sir. 

MI. LANEY: No further questions. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN TEXAS 

' 



II I! 
I' 

2 j! 

3 

-l 

l 

'i i 
1 

l 

(, i 
l {• 

l 8 

9 l 
IO 

II 

I 2 

I3 

14 

1 5 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 I . I 
22 I 

l 

23 I 
I 

24 

2S 

Ruiz 2-135 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Thompson? 

BY MS. THOMPSON 

Q Mr. Ruiz, you said that you have gone int:o the 

Farm and Ranch Store? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Have you ever bought any marijuana there? 

A Bought any what? 

Q Marijuana there. 

A No. I don't smoke it. 

Q Do you know whether or not the Judge has ever 

sold any there? 

A No. 

Q Or whether or not he has ever gotten any to 

come into his ranch? 

A I don't know. 

Chairman. 

MS. THOMPSON: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Weddington? 

MS. WEDDINGTON: No questions, Mr. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Chavez? 

BY MR. CRt\ VEZ 

Q Mr. Ruiz, did you also break politically 

with the Judge last year? 

A Yes • sir. 

Q So that you and Ruben Chapa and Cheofus 
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Gonzalez and all these other fellows broke with the 

Judge politically? 

A Yes,. .sir. 

Q These other gentlemen that were given 

eubpo.•nas here tonight, they also broke with the Judge 

politically? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I guess so. 

Octav1o- I forgot his last name. 

I doa't know. 

Well, tf they were on your side politically 

I 
I 

I I 

I 

11 you 'Would know 0 would you not? 

l2 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

testify? 

A 

Q 

(No .response.) 

Would you, or not? 

Yes. 

Are they on your side? 

I guess so. 

Have you appeared before a Grand Jury to 

No 0 air. 

Nobody has asked you? You're not under 

21 aubpoen£1? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A No. sir. 

Q You doJt' t have a criminal record or ·anything 

like that? 
I 
I 

A No. I 

I 
~------------------------· _________ __] 
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Q This thing that you're doing here tonight, 

this isn't politically motivated? 

A I don't think so. 

Q Back when all these things that you were doing, 

these things on county time and county pay, did you 

know that this might be wrong? 

A Yea. 

Q Did you ever report it to anybody? 

A No. 

Q was 1t the commonly accepted thing for. 

11 employees to go to the Judge 1 s ranch and do work for 

12 him oa county time and on county pay? 

13 Yes. sir. 

14 Q Do you know if the other County C mmissioners 

l5 and tbe County Judge knew that this was going on? 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

I don't know. 

Well, oertainly Ram1ro Carrillo knew that this 

1a waa goiaa on, did he not? 

19 A 

20 precinct. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2'i 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Sure. He was the Commissioner from the 

Did you do work on Ramtro's ranch also? 

Yes. 

Did you do any on th~ Judge's--on Judge Parr's? 

No. I went one weekend one time. 

Did you get paid extra for that? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q But you aay that what you and tbese other 

fellows are doing here is not politically motivated? 

A I don't think so. 

Q Well, of course, you'ro the only one that 

knows; I don't. You say you think, I mean are you sure, 

or don't you know? 

A I don't know. 

MR. CHAVEZ: That's all, Mr. Chairman. 

ThaDk you. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there further 

quest tons of this witness? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, do you 

have anything further of this witness? 

MR. CANALES: Just two brief questions; 

Mr. Chairman. 

·BY Mil. CANALIS 

Q I vould like to know if he knows Tomas 

'j 

i 

I 

I 
I 

Elizondo, the man we have been discussing here previously~ 
i 

A Yes, air, I know him. 

Q Have you ever seen him working on Judge o. P. 

Carrillo's ranch? 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

On occasions, or frequently, or as a general 
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Ruiz 

rule he wae always there? 

A Mostly every time I went out there to pick 

up those tractors he was there. 

Q What was be doing out there? 

A Just kind of pushing the people around, you 

know. 

Q Do you know who be was-

A t mean pushing the people, you know, taking 

9 care of people that they do their work. 

10 Q Do you know who Mr. Elizondo is employed by? 

II No, sir. 

12 Q Do you know of anybody else that might have 

13 worked with the county that was working out on Judge 

14 o. r. Carrillo's ranch? 

15 A No • sf.r. 

16 MR. CANALES: Thank you. 

17 CHAIRMAN HALE: Anything further with 

18 this witness? 

19 (No response.) 

20 CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you very much. 

2l A Thank you, sir. 

22 (The witness • Mr. Francisco Ruie, was 

23 excused • ) 

')' 
~'l CHAIRMAN HALE: Do you want to call your 

2"> next wltnesa, Mr. Canales. 
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MR. CANALES: I would like to eall Mr. 

OscGr saachez. Rla testimony would be similar to this 

and the only thing I would ask for the Committee, X 

will not ask hi.m any questions. His testimony will be 

similar. If you want to. the testimony was offered 

before and t•m sure the Committee can go 

throush it asklag their owe questions and save my time. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Did he work out on the 

Carrillo ranch also? 

MR.. CANALES: Yes~ The only thing is 

I ~ould like t-lt:e~eomm!ttee to consider the fact that he 

12 is not that proficient in English and need t:o put 

l 3 the questions slowly to him so he can well understand 

14 tbcam. 

15 

16 

)7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

MS. THOMPSON: I would like to ask the 

Chair a question. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Did we get an interpreter? 

Call and see if \!e can get the young lady up here. We 

have a young lady who is- I tbink it might be better 

lf ue ht\d tb,e yourt& lady here in case there is anything 

he doesn 1 t understand in English. Mr. Canales. and we 

can h&ve 1t translated. 

Mlt. CANALES: And as far as I'm concerned, 

24 the Chair could pose the questions. They are similar 

25 to tbta onea before 0 1£ he has ever worked out there and 
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1 if he has ever seen anyone working out there with county 
I' 

1 jj equipment. It's the same story. 
l! 

3 l 

I 
4 I I 

5 i l 
) I 

i I 
6 I j 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Sanchez, you ma~~ be 

seated. Do you un~erstand English? 

MR. SANCHEZ: Just a very little. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Very little. 

h want to be completely fair with everybody 

here and it aight be better to have an interpreter. 

Would you feel better to have it interpreted in 

MR. SANCHEZ: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I think it would be 

13 desirable. 

14 MR. : Mr. Rene Ramirez is 

15 proficient in Spanish and English. He might be able to 

16 help us out. 

17 

18 

Ml. RAMltEZ: I'll be glad to help out. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Would you be willing to 

19 help us on tbls thing? Could you come forward • if you 

20 would? 

21 What f.s your name, please? 

MR. lAMIREZ: Rene Ramirez. 

23 CHAIRMAN HALE: Rene Ramirez. Fine. 

24 Mr. Ramirez, will you be sworn then. I want 

~s to swear you a a an interpreter for this Committee. 
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I I 

l2 

l3 

14 

1 'i 

16 

17 

18 

(The witaeps·-aaa St10rD through·tbe 

itlt&rpzeter bJ~tbeiChaJ,rman at this time.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Would you be seated. 

MR. OSCAR SANCHEZ 

was called aa a witness by the Author and, having been 

duly c·•or1l; testified as follows: 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Ramirez. I'll read 

thls and will you interpret it to him. 

Mr. Sanchez, it's my duty as Chairman to 

adt.ise you of your rights with reference to your 

testimony. 

Would you speak loud enough, Mr. Ramirez, so 

t~et we can all here, if you don't mind. 

MR. RAMIREZ: {Interprets.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: You will be sworn to tell 

the truth. 

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.) 

I9 I CHAIRMAN HALE: And your failure to do 
II 

20 I' so could subject you to a prosecution for perjury. 

21 j MR. RAMIREZ: (Interpret~_) 

22 CHAIRMAN HALE: After you have completed 

I 
I 

I 
23 your statement, Members of the Committee may ask question• 

2 ~ concerning your testimony. 

2'i MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.) 
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I 
CHAIRMAN HALE: You must answer these 1 

questions truthfully. 

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: And your failure to do 

so could subject you to punishment for contempt. 

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: You can refuse to answer 

questions only on the ground that such answers might 

incriminate you. 

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Or tend to incriminate 

you in some way .. 

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: You a:re privileged to have 

an attorney of your selection sit with and adviso you 

as to your answers. 

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: If you desire. 

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Chair will attempt to 

protect your rights at all times. 

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Do you understand the 

advtG',G I h4ve given to you? 

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.) 
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CHAIRMAN HALE: Are you now ready to testify~ 
1 

MR. RAMXREZ: (Interprets.) 

Sir, he says that he understands that. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Do you solemnly swear that 

the testimony you will give on matters pending before the 

Committee will be the truth, the whole truth and nothing 

but the truth, so help you Ood? 

A Yea. sir. 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

CHAIRMAN HALE: You may be seated. 

sugges~ MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, if I may 

to the Committee, to expedite utters, the question.s can 

be put to the witness. If he understands it, I would 

suggest that be answer it· If he bas trouble understand-

I 
I 

I 

'4 1ng, then we can employ the interpreter, if the Co~ittee 

ao wishes • 

'( 

: 1 1 you 

A 

20 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Is that satisfactory with 

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets .. ) 

All rtght. 

2l BY CHAIRMAN HALE 

22 Q If you don't understand any of these quest i.ons, 

23 you ask Mr. Ramirez to tell you in Spanish, 

A 

Q 

Okay. 

Will you do that? 
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l 

A Yes, sir. 

'I 
?. l! 

I! 
MR. MALONEY: Before we get into ChE! j 

I 
i j 

3 ! I 
I I 
II 

-i I I 
I I 

testimony- I don • t knov Mr. Ramirez. Could be lnt:roduce I 

ll 
5 11 

II (, ; I 

7 

8 I 

9 II 
10 

h1moelf to the Committee? 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Ramirez, where do you 

live? 

MR. RAMIREZ: I live in Austin, s i.r ~ I am 

originally from Hebbronville, Texas, 26 miles from 

Benavides, Texas. I live here in Austin now. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Could 1 ask a question? 

11 Did you play football for the University of Texas at one 

12 timG'l 

13 MR. RAMIREZ: About three years ago. 

14 57. '8 and '9. Yea, sir. (Laughter.) 

IS CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney acuuns con-

J6 cerDed aa to vby you are here. Were you just ac:c:ldentall 

17 here aa & spectator? Do you have any interest in this 

1s pcocoedin&; Mr. Bamirez? 

19 MR. RAMIREZ: I am curious, sir. I am 

20 just curiouo as to "hat' a going on. I know a lot of the 

21 I am not going to follow I 

I 
pflople 1nvolyed in this thing. 

22 

23 

21 

i 
! 

aay trucke or t~allera, but 1 am just here for the fun. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: All right. 

I 

~------------------------------------------J HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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sanchez ____ Z~=-.ll.li_., 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN HALE 

Q Mr. Sanchez, for the record~ would you please 

state your name and address? 

A My name ts Oscar Sanchezt Box 502 Ben&Qides. 

Texas. 

Q Are you employed at the present time? 

A Employed for the Water District. 

Q For? 

A For the Wlter District. 

Q For the Water District? Is that tbe Duval 

County Conservation and Reclamation District? 

1-. Yes, sir. 

Q What work do you do for the District? 

A 1 just work on the backhoes. That's all the 

jobs there are. 

Q Bow much are you paid 1 

A $600. 

Q Sir? 

A $600. 

Q $600 a month. How long have you worked for the 

Water District 1 

A About a year. 

Q Where did you work before yoU\Worked for the 

water District? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 
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~ A Duva 1 County. ' 

~ I I 
- ~~~ Q How long did you work for Duva 1 County? 

3 \ A Well• I don • t rcuaefllbe;. 
j, 

4 ., 1 

5 i 

7 

,8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

J3 

14 

15 

16 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Couaty? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

Dlotrtct? 

A 

Q 

Many yeare? 

Sir? 

What were you pef.d when you were working for Duv 1 

$275. 

Whet type of work did you do for Duval County? 

Operator. 

Of what? 

Of a bulldozer or heavy equipment. 

Heovy equipment opore tor? 

Y&a, oir. 

Dld·you do otm11er type of work for the water 

Sit? 

Di.d you clo that same type of work for tbe I 
Wetar Diatrlc:t? 

I 
I 

A 

Q 

Rench? 

on the be ckhoe • Yes • a1r. 

All right. Bavo you ovor worked on the 

Well• SO!Ut ime. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Sanchez 

Q When waa the last time? 

A Well* I don't remember. 

Q Recently? 

A Well, about 1971, I guess was the last time I 

did that. 

Q 

A 

Q 

Who told you to work on the Carrillo ranch? 

Well, the Commissioner, Mr. Ramiro Carri.ll9. 

What type of work did you do on the Carrillo 

ranch? 

MR. RAMIREZ: On ·the water tank, sir. 

waa building a watGr reservoir. Dig out the dirt, you 

Q Did that involve heavy equipment? 

A Sir? 

Q Did you use heavy equipment ~n tba t wo:t'k 'l 

A Yes , a :l.r • 

Q Whore did you get the heavy equipment? 

A From the County. 

~ was the equipment owned by the County? 

Q This uas while you were employed by Du·va 1 

County? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Did Judge Carrillo ever tell you to go out 

on the ranch and perform any work? 

A No. He didn't aak me, but his brother told 

I 

He) 
! 

kno~ .. 

I 
me .J 

I II u_ ____________________________________________________ j 
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25 

saoe}aez 

~~ 
Q 

A Yea • slJ:. 

Q Doeo ho hold ony poaition in thtt gove~tunElnt 

there? 

A Who? 

Q ~~~z::o. 'CS rr illo? . 

A Yes. Be is Commisatoaer. 

Q What is he? 

·A He t148 a Couice1oner there. 

Q County Commissioner? 

A .·tea, e!r. 

Q · Wile t J-~teolnc t? 

Three. Precioct Three. 

Q Did you receive eay pay for the 'SOrk which you 

did on tbra C&Hlllo ranch? 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

mo• 
Did 

No, 

Did 

No~ 

atr• 

Judao C&rrt.llo 

elr. N·ot that 

1\QA.l.lzr~ COrrillo 

QVGr pay you any money? 

I roaOUlbor. 

ever pay you any money? 

Did JOU rcu::elve aay other benefits for this 

A.. Bo, sir. 

Q . -such oa food, gasoline, t:ires? 

A 14'o, sir. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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No othor comFensation of any kind? 

No, oir. 

3 ! Q The only compensation you received during that 

4 period of time ~e $275 a month th9t you were paid by 

s Duvttl Cotmty'l 

6 A 

7 Q ls that cor.rect? 

8 A 

9 Q 

10 carr&llo X'Onch? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

A 

Q 

A 

HOybo a couple ·of times, two t1moa. nat' e a 11. 

And the lOut one t:SB 1a. 1971? 

C1IA IltMAlt HALE t Mr • Maloney. 

1 ~ 8Y Rl\. MALONE.~ 

16 Q 

11 Diottlct afmf 

18 A Yoe., o.l~~ 

19 Q Do you do aay othet' Q)1.'k 0 cthor t.hGn work on the 

20 Reclomotlon Dist~:tct? 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

Whero I em 11orking nott'l No, atr. 

Do you oork on eny oae else •s propo~ty? 

Ho, &ir. · 

Are you peW bp- t~nyone else? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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sanchez 

MR. MALONEY: That•s all that I 

2 CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Slack? 

3 I MR. SLACK: 1 have no questions. 

4 CBA IIMAR HALE : Mr. Hendricks? 

5 BY MR. HENDRICKS 

6 Q Mr. Sanche a 
0 

this heavy equipment • does tba t 

7 use diesel? 

8 A Yes, air. 

9 Q The diesel in the machine. did you s•t that 

10 ft'ora the County? 

II soae use gasoline oa it. 

12 Q Did they bring the dtesel to you. or did you 

13 go by and get th• fuel b-efore you went to the ranch? 

14 A 

1s reooh. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

We would get the fuel before we went to the 

And it wes County fuel you were using? 

Yes, air. 

Did you eves- operate thls County's backhoe? 

The county? 

The County backhoe? 

Yea. Th~ County's got a backhoe, too. 

Did you ever operate the Benavides school 

23 Diatrict backhoe on the Judge's ranch? 

Q 

Not on the Judge's ranch. 

Not on the Judge's ranch? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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~ 
i ~ 

A No, sir. 
I ; 

2 ~ i Q Do you operate that backhoe now for th~e nenavid~s 

3 ! School District 'l Do you operate it now? 

.j 

7 

8 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 ' 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2l 

22 

23 

~4 

.?5 

II 

A Yes. I operate it. 

Q Aa part of your job now? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Ha~e you ever used it on any other property--

MR. CAN.A LES : I think he is confusing 

your question. 

A 

Q 

Diatr1ct 

A 

b9ckboe. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

equipment 

County? 

A 

MR. RAMIREZ: For the vJater Distrir:!t. 

Not the school dlatrlct-

Have you ever seen the Benevides School 

backhoe used on anybody's property, other than--! 
I 

i 

The Benavides School District doesn • t own a 

Dooa tho Water District own a backhoe? 

i 
l Yea, air. 

propertJ? 
! 

Has tt be.en used off the water Distric1t: 

Not thO t I know of. 

Not to your knowledge? 

No, sir. 

Have you ever bought any equipment. county 

at Fara and Ranch Store and charged it to the 

Not that I know of. No, sir. 
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10 
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13 

14 

I) 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

l) 

A lo, str. 

Q Have you ever cashed a~y checks made 01.1t to 

some other individWJl at the Farm and Ranc:h Stor·e1 

A No, sir. 

Q Have you ever been given food vouchers for 

the County? 

A No, air. 
' 

MR. HENDRICKS: That's all I have. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Nabers? 

MR. NABERS: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN HALE : Mr. Kaster? 

BY MR. KASTER 

Q Mr. sanchua, how long did you work for the 

County? 

A Since 1961 to 1973, I believe. 

Q Eleven or twelve years you worked for them? 

It Yes, sir. 

Q Dtd you ever build a tank on anybody else's 

ranch with the equipment? 

A No. 

Q Did you ever do any work on anybody else•s 

ranch in that area • like-

A No. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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sanchez 

Q The only ranch you ever worked on--

A I--just the two times on that tank. '.fhat 'n all. 

Q Pardon m.e? 

A Just that water tank in there. That's all. 

Q And that was all? 

MR. KASTER: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Donaldson? 

BY MR. DONALDSON 

Q Did you go to work for the ~ter District in 

April of '74? 

A 

Q 

A 

No, maybe in June, I believe. 

It was in 1974? 

'74. That's right. 

MR. DONALDSON: Okay. Thank you. 

CRA IR.M.AN HALE: Mr. Laney? 

MR. LANEY: Pass. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Thompson? 

MR. THOMPSON: I pass. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Weddington? 

MS. WEDDING'rON: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Chavez? 

nl 
l BY MR. CHAVEZ 

23 

24 

Q Mr. sanchez, it seems that most of these other 

fellows also that have testified before you, also work 

for the County and then somGtime around April, May, June, 
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they started leaving the County? 

A Oh huh. 

Q tiere you laid off or were you fired? 

A No 0 air. I quit the County. 

Q Did you get involved in this political r.ttce 
l 

witli 

B 

·9 

10 

] 1 

12 

13 

14 

Mr. Chapa? 

A No, sir. 

Q Politics dtdn' t hla ve anythin,g to do with tba t 1 

A No. 

Q It aeeu to me like I read somewhere that- Do 

you re•ember me asking Mr. Chapa about this political 

split of the parties? 

A Yes. 

It seems to ane tba t there was also, I read 

l'S somewho~e. a split within the Carrillo family. Is that 

16 right? 

17 A A split with the carrillo family? 

18 Q Yes. Even within the Carrillo family, when 

19 this break took place--and I am just trying to remember 

zo this from what I ha'Ye read in tbe papers. lt ·seems 

21 

:: II 

.') 

like the Parra and the carrillos oroke. 

A Well, maybe the Carrillos and Parra. I don't 

know about the Carrillo family. 

Q 

A 

All the Carrillo family stayed together? 

Probably. 
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Q Do you know, or not? 

A I don't know if they stayed together ot not. 

Q Some of the nephews are over there in the Water 

District, aren't they? 

A No. They used to work there. 

Q Are any of the Baa rd members related to the 

carrillos? 

A Not that I know of. 

Q That's a little political--· the other party that 

has control of that district 1 

A The other party. 

i 
! 

! 

Q Most of these fellows that worked for the County I 

and then left there and went with the water District-

A Yes. sit'. 

Q --and you that were working with the County 

were mnking* it seems to me, real low salaries, $275, 

$32S and aomethtns like tbmt? 

A Yes• sir. 

Q And then you go to work for the other District, 

th1 t is controlled by thie other pol it tea 1 party, and all 

of a sudden your sa l.aries go up about two or three 

hundred dollars? 

A Uh huh. Yea, sir. 

Q Tbatfs ~by I have been asking these fellows 

about whether or not a 11 thS,s is a politica 1 fight, the 
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22 i I 

I, 

23 I 
24 

:?) 
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political rivalry. Is this why you are here too1 

A I don't know. It's not political. 

Q You are her~ because you were anked to come to 

give testimony? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And you don't have anything personally against 

the Judge, or anything like that? 

A No. sir. 

MR. CHAVEZ: Tbl nk you very much, Hr. 

sanchez. 

' 

' CHAIRMAN HALE: Ar• there further questions? 

Mr. Hendricks? 

BY MR. HENDRICKS 

Q one. If all of the former County employees are 

now working for the water District, where are the former 

Wlter District employees? Are they working for the 

County now? 

A I don't know where they are worl<:ing at. 

{lAughter.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Any further questions? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mt:. Canales~ do you have 

anything further from this witness? 

BY MR. CANALES 

Q I would simply like to •sk the witness whether 
I 
I 
I 

I 
··------·-~J 
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'I 
j! 

i 
2 i i 

:I 
ll 
',. 3 1 
II 
:I 

-! I j 
! l 

s I i 
! I 
'I jl 

6 • I 

II 
7 

he saw any people or any other Du~al County equii~Jment 

out on the rene h while you were in the process of ·uorking 

out there? 

A Only maintainers. That's all I saw. 

Q County ma inte inera 1 

A That's right. 

Q Did you see any people ·that were employed by 

s the County working out there? 

A No. 

10 Q Do you know Tomas Elizondo? 

II A Yes. I know him. 

12 Q Dld you aee Tomas Elizondo out there? 

A No• sir. He was probably somewhere else, but 

t4 1 dtdn t t see him while I was working there. 

Is CHAIRMAN HALE: \.Jould you speak into the 

t6 alike, please. Mr. sanchez, so that the Reporter can get 

r7 your teet1mony'l 

18 Q You dldn't see any other County employee~ 

19 tsOJ:kltts out tb<a~G? 

20 Not the. day when I was working there. 

21 Wb.o was driving the m.a inta iner that belonged 

22 to tbe County? 

23 A 

24 t118$. 

Q 

Probably the one operator, opera~ing all the 

Did you know him? 
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1 II A carlos Herrera. Yes, sir. 
i I 
i; 
I 

l i 
I 
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6 
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l 
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I 

I 8 
! 

9 II 
10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

I 
15 

16 

17 

18 

I 

19 'I l! 
20 II 
21 I 
22 I 
23 

24 

2". 

Q carlos Herrera 1 

Yes, sir. 

Q He was working for the County, too? 

A Yes, sir. 

MR. CANALES: Thank you. I have no 

further questions. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. Thank you very much 

for your testimony. 

(The witness, Mr. Oscar Sanchez. was excusedq) 

CHAIRMAN RI\LE: Mr. canales, do you have a 

witness we could finish in ten or fifteen minutes? Or 
·,;, -·(· . -

are your witnesses going to be mueh longer than t:hat? 

MR. CANALES: Mr •. chairman, the n.sxt 

witness I anticipated calling was Mr. Rodolfo Coul:lng 

and I blve no idea bow long his testimony will be, 

because Mr. Coulin& is accompanied by counsel and the 

questions l have put to b!Ql have been very brief. Maybe 
' 

his counsel bas advistild him. not to answer the questions. 

I don't know. I would imaa1ne it would be very brief. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Shall we take him? 

THE COMMITTEE: Yes. 

CHAlRMAR: You may call your next witness. 
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MR. ORR: Mr. Chairman, I am Charles Orr. 

I am an attorney in practice ln Houston. My addreds is 

609 Fannin, Suite 629. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Charles Orr·? 0-r-r'? 
l 

MR. ORR: Yes. Initial E, and 1 represent: 

Mr. Couling, the witness. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. We are delighted to 

rutve you here, counsel. 

MR. ORR: Thank you, sir. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr.. Couling, it is sny 

duty as Chairmtn. to advise you of your rights with 

reference to your testimony. You will be sworn to tell 

the truth, and your failure to do so could subject you 

to prosecution for perjury. 
i 

After you ha\fe completed your statement, I memberS! 

t6 ! of the Committee m.ay ask que&ttons concerning your 

17 testimony. You must answer these questions truthfully. 

18 I Your ~efuaal to do so, could subject you to punishment l, 
t'J ! ! for contempt. You can r~fuse to answer questions only 

!
i 1 

20 .I on the ground that such answers might incriminate you 
'I 

n ! j or tend to inerimina te you in some way. You are 

ll 
22 ; ! privileged to have an attorney of your selection sit 

i' 
! i 

23 11' with yau and advise you as to }10 ur answers. if you desire .i 
I: 

24 If The Chair will attempt to protect your rights 

2 
', ~~ I , at all times .. 

I 
ll . I 
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testify? 
I , I 

5 i . 

9 

be sworn. 

Do you understand the advice I have given you? 

MR. COOLING: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are you now reacJ co 

HR. COULING: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Would you please stand and 

(The witness was sworn by the Chairman.) 

10 MR. RODOLFO M. COULING 

u ~• called as a witness by the Author. and being first 

12 duly sworn, tcastified as follows: 

13 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

r4 BY Ma. HALE 

15 Q For the reeord, would you please state your 

16 tlillM and your a ddreea? 

17 Rodolfo M. Couling. Draver ''M", Benavides • 

1s Teaaa. 

19 CHAIRMAN BALE: Fine. Mr. canales, do you 

20 have a prepared etate01ent or do you want to proceed with 

n quet·tiona and a utters? 

22 MR. CANALES: Mr. Chaih1tln• thia en's 

23 ena~ra will be a• completely iaaproatptu, a a tar as I •• 

24 eonce:rned as it will be. for the Com.ulittee. I have no 

2s tcle!a • and I 'tlOUld like to tatto him on cross bcafore the 
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Cou]ing - cross 

Committee takes him. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Ycu may ask whatever 

questions. We won • t go into whether it 1 s direct ::>r cross . 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CANALES 

Q Mr. Couling, you state that you have lived or 

you live in Benavides'? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q How long have you lived there, Nr ~ Couling 'l 

Close to fifty years. 

Q What business are you eqgagecl in. Mr. Gouling7 

A On advice of my counsel, I respectfully claim 

the privilege accorded to me by the Fifth Amendment of 

the United States Constitution, Article I, Sectitln 10 of 

the State of Texas and decline to answer on the ,~rcund 

tbat my answer might tend to incriminate me. 

Q Mr. Coulf.ng, do you own the Benavides Implement 

·and Hardware Store? 

A I claim the same privilege. 

l-iS. THOMPSON: Mr. Cba irma n, would you ask 

him to speak into the microphone. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: If you would, Mr. Couling, 

speak into the mike, so we can hear you. 

A Yes, sir. 

I 
_, __ _1 
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fl. 
I' 

Mr. Couling, do you know where the Benavides 
'I 

i 
I 
I 

I I 

I 
I 
I I j 

,_ 

I 
I 

II 

II 

Implement and Hardware Store is? 

A I'm sorry. I still claim the sane privilege. 

Q That it would tend to incriminate you? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q If you knew where the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware Store was? 

A (No response.) 

Q Do you know Mr. Cleofa-s Gonzalez t 

A I still claim the same privi:lege, sir. 

Q Have you ever heard of the Zertu-che Genera 1 Stor~ '? 

A 

Q 

I still claim the same privilege. 

Mr. Couling, where do you bank? 

I still claim the same privilege. 

i 
i 
I 
I 
I 
i 

disclose1 It would tend to incrtminate you if you 
\ 

Q 

what bank you made your deposits in? 

I still claim the same privilege. 

(Conference with counsel.) 

A In the First State Bank of san Diego. 

Q You bank at the First State Bank of San Diego. 

Mr. Couling, have you ever held any political 

or elected offices? 

A I still claim the same--

MR. ORR: Answer that question. 

A No, sir. 
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A I still claim the same privilegE. 

Q It would incriminate you to admit there is a 

high school in Benavides? 

A Yes, sir. There is a high school thera in 

Benevides. 

_Q Do you know Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q How long have you known Judge Ow P. Carrillo? 

A 1 still claim my same privilege~ 

Q It would incriminate you to disclose to this 

Committee how long you have known Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Is there a water district in and surrounding 

Benavides? 

A I still claim the same privileges 

Q Mr. Couling, have you ever written any checks 

payable from you personally or from the Benavid~H; 

Implement and Hardware to &1Ze~tuche General Store? 

A I still claim t~e same privilege. 

Q Mr. Coul1ng, have you ever given any checks 

or cash or any other type of currency to Mr. o. P. 

Carrillo? 

A 
i 

I still claim my same privilege. of incriminatin~ 

i 
--------------- ··--·------··-····---- -····-----····_] 
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Q It would incriminate you to state that you 

have given-

A I still claim the same privilege. 

Q Mr. Cculing, do you have a checking account 

in the Rio Grande City Bank? 

A I still claim the same privilege. 

Q It would incriminate you to tell this 

Committee if you had a checking account in the Rio 

Grande State Bank? 

A I still claim the same privilege. 

Q D~ you know if there is a bank in Rio Grande 

City? 

A I still claim the same privilege. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, it proved to 

be a very short examination, and I have no further 

questions. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. 

Mr. Orr, let the Chair state to you that the 

Chair bas been advised of the sensitive situation of 

your client, and we are sympathetic with his problem., 

Could I ask you a question? I assume in view 

of the responses to the questions that have been asked 

by Mr. Canales that your advice to your client is going 

to be the same on any questions propounded by members of 

-
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the Committee. Is that correct? 

MR. ORR: Any questions al<mg the same 

lines, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Yes, sir. 

I ask you that in an attempt to shorten our 

proceeding here. There is no point in us going through 

a large number of questions and getting a refusal to 

answer on the grounds of incriminationon every.one of 

them, as we don't have any desire to subject your client 

to any more embarrassment than necessary. 

MR. ORR: Yes. Well, of course, I cannot 1 

·i 

advise him to refuse to answer any questions, period, tha¢ 

the Committee might ask. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I understand. 

Mr. Couling, let the Chair ask you one or two 

question~ and you may answer them or not. 

QUESTIONS BY THE COMMITTEE 

BY CHAIRMAN HALE 

Q Do you now, or did you at any time, hold an 

official position in any governmental agency in Duval 

County? 

A Yes, sir. 

MR. ORR: Would you ask the question again~ 

!~ wli~_p_l_e_a_s_e __ , __ s_i_r_? ______________________________________________ ~ 
HICKMAN F~EPORTING SERVICE 

AUSTIN. TEXAS 



!l 
I 

2 

I 
3 I 

·l 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

u 

14 

15 

16 

J 7 

18 

19 

20 
I 

21 I 
! 
l I 

22 i' 

II 
23 II 
24 I 

l 
2) ' I 

Couling 2.-167 -, 

Q Do you,now hold an official position in any 

governmental agency in Duval County? 

A Not now. 

Q Hnve you ever held an official position in any 

gover~ental agency? 

MR. ORR: Mr. Chairman, might I have a 

clarification? You're going behond an elected position. 

Is that the thrust of your question? 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Yes, sir. Did he ever 

hold any type of official position there? I'm told he 

' \ 

was a tax collector at one time for one of these agencies. 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Is that true? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Which agency? 

A Benavides Independent School District. 

Q Benavides Independellt School District. 

were appointed to that and not elected. 

A Yas. 

Q Is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Who makes that appointment? 

A I claim the same privilege, _sir. 

Q Were you paid for that service? 

A Yes, sir. 
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Q Were you paid a monthly salary, or was it on a 

per work basis? 

A By the month, sir. 

Q By the month. How long did you hold thi:!i 

position? 

A Since 1962 until this year. 

Q 1975? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q When did you terminate this employment 

relationship with the Benavides Independent School 

District? 

A I claim the same privilege, sir. 

Q Did you resign this position, or were you 

terminated by your employer? 

A I still claim the same privilege. 

Q During the time you were working for the 

Benavides Independent School District, was that a 

full-time occupation for you? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q During the period of time that you were 

working for the Benavides Independent School District, 

did you receive any compensation for services rendered 
' 

from any other source other than the Benavides Independen~ 

School District? 

A I claim the same privilege, sir. 
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A 
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fessional 

and Ranch 

A 

Q 

Couling 

Did you ever perform any services of a 

or a professional nature for Judge o. P. 

I claim the same privilege, sir. 

Did you ever perform any business or pro·-

services for a business entity known as Farm 

Store? 

I claim the same privilege, sir. 

Did you ever perform any business or pro-

10 fessional services for a business entity known as 

11 Zertuche General Store? 

12 A I still claim the same privilege, sir. 

13 CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney? 

14 MR. MALONEY: If I may • I would like to 

~~ direct my question to counsel. Is your client under a 

16 formal accusation? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 I 
l 

22 I 

MB. • ORR: No 1 . he is not • 

MR. MALONEY: I have no questions. 

CHAIRMAN HALE:~ Mr. Slack? 

MR. SLACK: I have no questions. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks? 

MR. HENDRICKS: Just one question. 

23 BY MR. HENDRICKS 

24 Q Is there currently a store licensedin your 

name in the State of Texas? 
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I claim the same privilege, sir. 

'l 

1 
' I 
l 

! 
l 
I 

I 
I 

! 
l 

I 

II 
I 
I 

I I 

MR. HENDRICKS: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Nabersl 

BY MR. NABERS 

Q Are you under subpoena to this Committee 

tonight? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Where were you when that subpoena was lssued? 

A Would you repeat the question? 

Q Were you served with your subpoena here in 

Austin? 

A Yes. sir. 

Q Why were you here in Austin? 

A I just happened to come along with the rest of 

the boys that came over. 

Q Were you planning on testifying before this 

Committee? 

A I had not consulted with my attorney. 

Q Sir? 

A I had not consulted with my attorney. 

Q Oh; you hadn't consulted with your attorney 

when you came to austin? 

A (The witness shook his head.) 

Q Since that time you have consulted with him 

and obtained his advice. Is that correct? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q You had planned to testify to this Com;nit:tee 

prior to consultation with your attorney. Is that 

correct? 

A No, sir. 

Q You just came along for the ride? 

A Yes, sir. 

MR. NABERS: No further questions. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Kaster? 

BY MR. KASTER 

Q Mr. Couling, do I understand you came to 

Austin and then after you received the subpoena then you 

consulted with your attorney. Is that correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

MR. KASTER: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Donaldson? 

BY MR. DONALDSON 

Q Had you employ~d counsel prior to the time you 

were served with the subpoena? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Have you been subpoenaed by any other 

investigative body? 

I 
! 

I 

A I decline to answer. I claim my same privilegeJ 

sir. 

Q Have you given testimony before any other 

HICKMAN Rl-:-PORTING SERVICE 
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investigative body? 

A I claim the same privilege. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Laney? 

MR. LANEY: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Thompson? 

MS. THOMPSON: I pass. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Weddington? 

MS. WEDDINGTON: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Chavez? 

MR. CHAVEZ: Mr. Chairman, I would like 

to direct a question to counsel. 

You haven't appeared with him at some 

proceeding before this, and if so, if he has been 

interviewed or given testimony, hasn't he in fact waived 

his privilege? 

MR. ORR: I think the answer would be 

''No." 

MR. CHAVEZ: No to which one? 

MR. ORR: No to whether he has waived 

any privilege by any conceivable appearance before any 

body other than this Committee. 

MR. CHAVEZ: Has he been interviewed by 

the Attorney General's Office? 

MR. ORR: t•m going to decline to answer 

that on the ground of attorney-client privilege. ' i 

l 
------·-J 
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MR. CHAVEZ: I'm not asking about whether 

or not o~ what hie testimony might have been. I'm just 

asking whether or not--

MR. ORR: I understand. 

MR. CHAVEZ: --you appeared at that 

certain place to speak with a representative of the 

Attorney General's office or the U. s. Attorney's 

office. 

MR. ORR: You see, my problem is that 

I feel your line of questioning might go to, by 

enumerating the various entities that he might have 

discussed something with, that by that process you would 

go into matters that would be covered by the attorney­

client privilege, and I feel that I should invoke it at 

this point. 

MR. CHAVEZ: Well, but if--

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Orr, would you pull 

the mike over, please. 

I 
I 

I 
MR. CHAVEZ: If he has appeared before som~ 

investigative body or some officer with counsel, or even 

without counsel, I think, and bas been warned about his 

rights and has in fact given testimony, are you telling 

us that that testimony is not available to us? 

MR. ORR: I certainly am not. 

MR. CHAVEZ: Then why wouldn't you be in ! 

I 
---
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a position to tell us whether or not he has appeared 

before somebody? 

MR. ORR: I don't believe that I as his 

attorney should be required to state where he might have 

glven testimony or where he has not. 

MR. CHAVEZ: Then I'll ask him. 

BY MR- CHAVEZ 

Q Mr. Couling, have you or have you not spoken 

to any representative of the Attorney General's office 

of the State of Texas? 

A I still claim my privilege. sir, the same 

12 privilege. 

13 Q Have you spoken to any officer of the Internal 

14 Revenue Service of the United States? 

15 A I still claim my privilege, sir. 

16 Q Have you spoken to any representative of the 

17 United States Attorney General's office? 

18 A I still claim my same privilege. 

19 Q How are you politically aligned with Judge 

20 Carrillo? 

21 A I still claim. the same privilege. 

22 MR. CHAVEZ: Mr. Chairman, would you be 

23 inclined at some time to determine whether or not this 

24 witness might be considered to be 1n contempt ~f the 

2s Committee or the House? 
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CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Chavez, the Chair 

wouldn't think there would be any possibltl eonte·mpt 

as long as he refuses to answer on the grounds tha1: his 

answers might tend to incriminate him. I think ~~e 

would have no basis for a contempt proceeding then. 

That is his right to do that. 

MR. CHAVEZ: Even if he bas in fact given ; 

testimony to some investigative body and waived that 

privilege? 

10 C-HAIRMAN HALE: I think it is immaterial. 

11 I think he bas the right to claim his privilege under 
I 

12 the Fifth Amendment regardless. 

13 MR. CHAVEZ: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

14 I CHAlllMAN HALE: Are there any other 

I'S !1 questions? 

16 Mr. Canales? 

17 BY MR. CAHALES 

18 

19 

Q 

A 

Mr. Couling, do you know what my name is? 

I atill claim the same privilege, sir. Ob, 

20 Mr. Canales. 

21 CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, let the 

22 Chair say aa a sidebar remark. knowing you might 

23 incriminate somebody here tonight. 
I 

24 I Q Mr. Coulina, not saying that you know the 

25 i l Sheriff 

II 
of Duval County, but do you know what the name of i 

I 
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the Sheriff of Duval County is? 

A Yes. 

Q Would you tell the Committee what the name of 

the Sheriff of Duval County is? 

A Raul Serna. 

Q Do you know a Mr. Clinton Mangus from Freer, 

Texas? 

A I claim the same privilege. 

Q It would incriminate you to admit that you 

know Mr. Clinton Mangus? 

A I claim the same privilege. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I have no 

further questions. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. 

Any further questions from any members of the 

Committee? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Couling, we appreciate 

you being here be.fore the Committee. We recognize your 

s ituat ioo. 

Mr. Orr, thank you for appearing before the 

CoiUlittee. Let the Chair state that you are obviously 

doing a very able job for your client. 

MR. ORR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I think we 
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hit 12;00 o'clock on the nose, unless the Committee 

would like to hear my next witness. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. No, I don't think 

we'll undertake another witness tonight. 

(The witness, Rodolfo M. Couling, was 

excused.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: We appreciate all of you 

in the audience. You have been very attentive a~1d 

very orderly. We're glad to have you at these hr;arings 

as long as this type of decorum prevails. The Chair 

apologizes for getting the meeting started late tonight, 

but it was beyond our control, as many of you probably 

know from watching the House session. 

We will resume this at 8:00 o'clock tomorrow 

night. 

MR. NABERS: Can we start it at 7:00 

o'clock? 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Do you want to change it 

t9 to 7:00? 

20 MR. NABERS: Yes, sir. 

21 MR. DONALDSON: Change it to 6:00. Let's 

22 start at 6:00 and stop at 10:00. 

23 MR. NABERS: Let's start at 7:00. 

24 CHAIRMAN HALE: Let's take a show of hands 

25 on it. How many on the Committee would prefer to start 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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at 6;00 o'clock? we•11 start at 6:00. One, two. 

How .any would p•efer to a tart ,at 7:00? Three. 

Now maay would prefer to start 4t 8:00? Three. 

we've aot a pretty aeneral assortment here. 

How about 1:30? 

MR. SLACK: I ao move. 

CIA IRMAN BALE: Okay. 7 : 30 then. Mr. 

Slack 110ves the Co•ittee stand recessed until 7:30 

p.m. tomorrow nlaht. or until the call of the Chair, 

10 whichever is earlier. Is there objection? 

11 The Cbatc hears aoae. we'll stand in ~•~ess. 

12 (Whereupon, at 12:05 a.m., the Committee 

13 was reeeeaed to tteconvene oa Thursday, May 22 • l~J7S, at 

14 7:30 o'clock p.m.) 
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